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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking stateteehat are made under the safe harbor provigibtise Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Theseteataents relate to our future plans, objectives eetgiions ang
intentions and involve inherent risks and uncetteén We use words such as “expect,” “anticipatgfoject,”
“believe,” “plan,” “intend,” “seek,” “should,” “esinate,” “future,” or variations of such words anther similar
expressions to identify forward-looking statementeu should not place undue reliance on these fatsa@oking
statements. Forward-looking statements containegirhéncluding future cash contractual obligatioliguidity, cash
flow, orders, results of operations, and trendQragrother matters) or in other statements madeslay@imade based ¢
management’s expectations and beliefs concerningdevents impacting us and are subject to uringgs and
factors relating to our operations and businesgr@mwment, all of which are difficult to predict amdany of which are
beyond our control, that could cause our actualli®s$o differ materially from those matters exmed or implied by
forward-looking statements. We believe that thiofeing factors, among others (including those désctin Item 3.D.
“Risk Factors”), could affect our future performarand the liquidity and value of our securities andse our actug
results to differ materially from those expressedmplied by forward-looking statements made byusn our behalf;
the cyclicality of the markets which we serve amel tulnerability of those markets to economic dawms; the loss of
or a significant reduction or delay in purchase®bycustomers; competition in our markets; finahdistress of third
parties; general economic, political, business @wagket risks associated with our global operatidltuations in
foreign currency exchange and interest rates; bilityato control our costs while maintaining custer relationships
and core business resources; the pricing and aiuldifaf raw materials; litigation and disputes/aiving us, including
the extent of product liability, warranty, pensicemployment and other similar claims asserted agais; the
impairment of our goodwill and other indefinitedi¢ intangible assets; labor costs and disputeshendieterioration o
our relations with our employees; additional lidkak related to taxes; our ability to continue taghnical innovation in
our product lines; our ability to protect our inéetual property and know-how; claims that our prctd or processe
infringe intellectual property rights of othersgegations governing the export of our productsc¢tilations in the price
of our stock; and other factors described in thisual report. All forward-looking statements ditiable to us o
persons acting on our behalf apply only as of #ite df this annual report and are expressly gedlifi their entirety by
the cautionary statements included in this anre@dnt. We undertake no obligation to update orseforward-looking
statements, which may be made to reflect eventsiroumstances that arise after the date made oeftect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.
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Despite improved operating results when comparet fiscal 2014, fiscal 2015 was another challengiegr for the
company. Net sales for the fiscal year were $8lllon, up approximately 24.4% when compared tosates of $62.7
million in fiscal 2014. Net loss for fiscal 2015a® $6.4 million, or $2.11 per share, compared teetaloss of $10.6
million, or $3.47 per share, in fiscal 2014.

Operating results were a reflection of the dynaanid increasingly competitive environment the conypaow finds itself
in together with unstable conditions in China, vehgrcreases in labor and overhead costs have aliedrmost of the
advantages previously held over our competitors.

Despite our efforts to improve efficiency and reglgosts, operating margins for our camera modulgponent business,
which made up the bulk of our sales in fiscal 20dBre under constant pressure as pricing contitoetkteriorate.
Given the limited barriers to entry to the cameradmie business, the company lost several key céstotn competitors
during the fiscal year as new entrants to the ntasKered them substantial price reductions thatwese unable to
match.

We were able to make continued advancements imedical product business in fiscal 2015 throughpieetration of

our targeted markets, though we expect that thégeas will take some time to cultivate beforeotild start contributing

to our business. This is due to the length of fintekes to apply and obtain approvals from gokental agencies and
institutions.  Additionally, while we are confidetfite products we could provide would likely cresignificant savings

to hospitals and medical facilities, the decisient@ whether to purchase our products are not sadsmade based
purely on economics.

We continued leasing much of our Dongguan facdityg utilized the rental income to cover most of maintenance, tax
and depreciation costs associated with the facilityltimately, however, we need to find betterimétion for this asset.

China’s economy is changing significantly, with tin@st drastic changes occurring in the Guangdoogifte, where
our facility is located. Costs have escalated atarally, particularly labor costs, thus alteriniget competitive
economics for commodity manufacturing compared tttelo lower-cost manufacturing areas. Neverthelegshave
been and will continue to consider and evaluateogtthat will improve our financial results.

Again, | wish to thank my fellow employees and shatders for their ongoing patience and support.

JOHN C.K. SHAM
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 16, 2015

12/F., Kin Teck Industrial Building
26 Wong Chuk Hang Road
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

Tel.: (852) 2814-0601

Fax: (852) 2873-0591
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

To the Board of Directors and shareholders of
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Global-Tech Advanced Innovationsdnd.its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Company”) as ofuidh 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consotidaégéements of operations and
comprehensive income, changes in shareholderstyegpd cash flows for the years ended March 31522014 and 2013. These
consolidated financial statements are the respitibgsitf the Company’s management. Our responsibii to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based oaumlit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staigdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &wudibtain reasonable assurance about whetheotislidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Tmpany is not required to have, nor were we engageérform, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our daudicluded consideration of internal control ovieahcial reporting as a basis for
designing auditing procedures that are appropitiatiee circumstances, but not for the purpose pfessing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdireancial reporting. Accordingly, we express nels opinion. Our audit also
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finargt@lements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estisiatade by management and evaluating the overaldial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonablis ffasour opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaegrferred to above present fairly, in all mategspects, the financial positions of
the Company as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, anddhsolidated results of its operations and cashksflior the years ended March
31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, in conformity with accougprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedetaf America.

/sl Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

July 17, 2015



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF MARCH 31, 2015 and 2014

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIValENTS .........cooi oo
Time depositS.........cccvvevvvvviieirinnnnn.
Restricted cash.........cccccvvvvvnnnnnn.
Available-for-sale investments
Accounts and bills receivable, Net ... e
LN VZ=T 0] (0] 1= PP PSP
Prepaid XPENSES .....iccviviiiiiiiiriiueescmmmmmmms e s e e e e e aetaeeteeeeaesaassaere e s eeanan
Deposits and other aSSEtS..........oiiiiiicceeeee e
Amount due from a related Party........ccoovccccccevvieeeeeeieii e s

TOAl CUIMENT ASSELS...uuuiiiiiieiei e e s s cememee ettt er et e e ee s e e e s e r e aeaeseseasnsereseesomssrsrnnnees

Interests in jointly-controlled ENtItIES.....cuuueuuiriiiiiiiiie e

Property, plant and equipmMENt, NEL.........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiie e e a e
Land USE NGNS, NEL.....coiii i cecceee et aeeennees
Deferred TaX @SSELS ...ciiceiieiiiiiiiiia i e ettt e e e e e e e e s e e e
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant apdment...............ccccvvveeesomeevenen,

B0 t= L= EoTT=] £

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Short term bank l0@NS ...........uiiiiiiiie et et
Accounts and bills payable ...........ccoieeeeeecc e
LI S] (0] 14T o0 [T 0 To L] 1 P EURPR
Accrued salaries, allowances and other employeefiten.............ccccccvvvveviee..
Other accrued liabilities.............uiiiii e
INCome tax payable.......cooooi i e ————————

Total CUITeNt HADIlITIES ........iiii et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeees

Deferred tax abilitieS..........cuuuiiiiiiceeee e e eena s
B0 e= LI 1= o1

Commitments and CONLINGENCIES ........c..vuieeeeeeeiiciiiiieere e e e e e e e e e eennsee e aereeaeae e,
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value US$0.04 per share; 12,80G0ares authorized;
3,233,814 shares issued as of March 31, 2015 abdl.20...........ccooeeiiiiiicenns
Preferred stock, par value US$0.04 per share; BBGhares authorized; no
SNAIES ISSUB ..ottt e e ae e e
Additional paid-in capital
Statutory reserves .......ccccceeeveeeeeneen
Accumulated defiCit..........cvuvviiiiiii e
Accumulated other comprehensive income..
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 189,587 shares mm 31 2015 and 2014 .....

Total Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. shatééis’ equity......................
NON-CONLIOIING INTEIESES ..uvvviiiiiee e cceeee e e eeee s

Total Shareholders’ EQUILY ........oiciiiei i ceeeeeir e
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.

Notes 2015 2014
US$ Uss$
4 14,501,954 22,820,300
5 12,649,524 11,339,515
6 9,850,930 4,013,565
7 — 1,050,500
8 20,493,672 21,216,884
9 6,418,778 7,162,867
95,398 123,462
3,753,765 2,475,765
10 15,475 12,569
67,779,496 70,215,427
11 24,175,245 26,316,958
12 2,826,511 2,923,424
17 2,815 —
199,693 212,134
94,983,760 99,667,943
14 6,780,394 7,279,629
14,248,741 12,520,080
1,251,521 1,138,500
3,077,943 2,980,622
13, 22 6,284,082 5,720,757
4,028,708 4,233,169
35,671,389 33,872,757
17 — 5,183
35,671,389 33,877,940
20, 21
15 129,353 129,353
85,108,427 85,103,910
3(ad 1,328,283 1,340,229
(32,999,29¢  (26,590,366)
10,848,613 10,854,689
(4,663,321  (4,663,321)
59,752,057 66,174,494
(439,686 (384,491)
59,312,371 65,790,003
94,983,760 99,667,943




GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHBINE INCOME

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015, 2014 ANID13

Notes 2015 2014 2013
us$ us$ us$
NEE SAIB ... ittt 78,020,855 62,692,901 66,827,069
COoSt Of OOAS SOIA.......eeeiiieeiiiiii et ee e (74,867,109) (57,999,265) (56,854,673)
LT (0TS o] o] {1 AP 3,153,746 4,693,636 9,972,396
Selling, general and administrative EXpPenSES........ccceeeevvviiiiiivinieieeeeeeennn, (12,423,741) (13,148,067) (12,383,973)
(0] o<1 = 117 T N (o 1= (9,269,995) (8,454,431) (2,411,577)
INtEreSt INCOME, NEL.....ei e 438,951 685,138 1,504,166
Other INCOME, NEL....ciiiiiiiiiieiie et beeee e 16 2,146,108 2,396,789 583,315
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes...........ccccovcceeeene (6,684,935 (5,372,50% (324,096)
INCOmMe tax DENEFItS .......oiiiiiii e 17 209,046 255,927 841,900
Income (Loss) from continuing OPerations .....cccc..oovcvvviviiiieieieeee e es s (6,475,890) (5,116,577) 517,804
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taX...........cccccevvvvvivvviveiiiiiinnnne, 18 — (5,547,024) (2,589,063)
A= A Lo U PPRTRURRN (6,475,890) (10,663,601) (2,071,259)
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation adjustments ....cccccecvveveeeeeee v 44,241 153,453 989,852
Release of unrealized loss on available-for-satestments, net of income
tax of nil, UPON diSPOSAl ..........ccouiii e ettt (50,500) (13,980) —
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investmemnés,of income tax of nil .. — 5,300 22,495
Total cCOMPrenenSIVE 10SS........c.oiv it ceeeme et e e (6,482,149) (10,518,828) (1,058,912)
Less: Comprehensive loss attributable to non-cdimganterests
NELINCOME ... e e e et e e e et e 55,012 108,044 107,958
Foreign currency translation adjustments......c.ce.cvvvieiivieieieeeneeecciiinnns 183 176 (52)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to sharelsldeGlobal-Tech
Advanced INNOVAtioNS INC. ......uvviiiiiiie e (6,426,954) (10,410,608) (951,006)
Income (Loss) from continuing OPerations .....ccccc..ooocvvvvviiiireeieeee e e (6,475,890) (5,116,577) 517,804
Net income attributable to n-controlling interests..........ccccccvveveceeennnn. 55,012 108,044 107,958
Income (Loss) from continuing operations attriblgato shareholders of
Global-Tech Advanced INNoOVationS INC. .....cceeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e, (6,420,878) (5,008,533) 625,762
Loss from discontinued Operations ..........cccccevvereiiiireeeeeeeesscsieeeree e — (5,547,024) (2,589,063)
Net loss attributable to shareholders of GI-Tech Advanced Innovations
Dt e (6,420,878) (10,555,557)  (1,963,301)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) from continuipgrations per share of
(o701 210810 TS (o 1od <P 19 (2.11) (1.65) 0.21
Basic and diluted loss per share of common StocK...........cccccveiiiiienennns 19 (2.11) (3.47) (0.65)
Number Number Number
Basic and diluted weighted average number of stafresmmon stock....... 19 3,044,227 3,041,625 3,040,310
uUs$ uUss$ Us$
Rental expense paid to related parties (includestiliing, general and
admINiStrative EXPENSES) ....ccvviiiiiviiiirceeeeeeerienrias s s e s seeeeaaaeeeeaeneeanns 10 391,560 372,457 403,907

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDEREQUITY
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015, 2014 ANID13

Number of shares Amounts
Total
Additional Accumulated other Global-Tech Non-
Common Treasury Common paid-in Statutory Accumulated Treasury comprehensive shareholders’ controlling Total
stock stock stock capital reserves deficit stock income (loss) equity interests equity
uss$ uss$ us$ us$ Uss$ us$ us$ us$ us$
Balance as of March 31, 2012 3,229,314 (189,587) 129,17384,786,226 — (9,690,526 (4,663,321) 9,697,445 80,258,997 (168,365) 80,090,632
Net loss for the ye............. — — — — — (1,963,30} — — (1,963,301) (107,958) (2,071,259)
Other comprehensive income:
¢ unrealized gain on available-for-sale

investments, net of income tax of

Nl — — — — — — — 22,495 22,495 — 22,495
« foreign currency translation

adjustments................... — — — — — — — 989,800 989,800 52 989,852
Total net comprehensive income (loss)

................ — — — — — (1,963,301 — 1,012,29 (951,006) (107,906) (1,058,912)
Stock compensation expenses... — — — 258,128 — — — — 258,128 — 258,128
Shares issued to an employee... 1,50C — 60 9,04¢ — — — — 9,108 — 9,108
Transfer to statutory reserves.... — — — — 1,238,361 (1,238,361 — — — — —
Cash dividend (note).... — — — — — (3,040,752 — — (3,040,753) — (3,040,753)
Balance as of March 31, 2013 3,230,814 (189,587) 129,23385,053,402 1,238,361 (15,932,94) (4,663,321) 10,709,740 76,534,474 (276,271) 76,258,203
Net loss for the ye............. — — — — — (10,555,55y — —  (10,555,557) (108,044) (10,663,601)
Other comprehensive income:
¢ unrealized gain on available-for-sale

investments, net of income tax of

Nl — — — — — — — 5,300 5,300 — 5,300
« release of unrealized loss on

available-for-sale investments, net of

incometaxofn................... — — — — — — — (13,98() (13,980) — (13,980)
« foreign currency translation

adjustment................... — — — — — — — 153,62 153,629 (176) 153,453
Total net comprehensive income (loss)

................ — — — — — (10,555,557 — 144,94¢ (10,410,608) (108,220) (10,518,828)
Shares issued upon stock options

exercised... 3,00( — 12 14,13( — — — — 14,250 — 14,250
Stock compensation expenses... — — — 36,378 — — — — 36,378 — 36,378
Transfer to statutory reserves.... — — — — 101,868 (101,868 — — — — —
Balance as of March 31, 2014 3,233,81. (189,58) 129,35. 85,103,91 1,340,22! (26,590,36€ (4,663,321  10,854,68 66,174,494 (384,491) 65,790,003



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDEREQUITY (continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015, 2014 ANID13

Number of shares Amounts
Total
Additional Accumulated other Global-Tech Non-
Common Treasury Common paid-in Statutory Accumulated Treasury comprehensive shareholders’  controlling Total
stock stock stock capital reserves deficit stock income (loss) equity interests equity
uss uss uss uss us$ uss uss uUss Uss$
Balance as of March 31, 2014 3,233,814 (189,587) 129,35385,103,910 1,340,229 (26,590,36p (4,663,321) 10,854,689 66,174,494 (384,491) 65,790,003
Net loss for the ye............. — — — — — (6,420,873 — — (6,420,878) (55,012) (6,475,890)
Other comprehensive incon
¢ release of unrealized loss on

available-for-sale investments, net of

income tax of nil................... — — — — — — — (50,500) (50,500) — (50,500)
« foreign currency translation

adjustments................... — — — — — — — 44,424 44,424 (183) 44,241
Total net comprehensive income (loss)

................ — — — — — (6,420,878 — (6,076) (6,426,954) (55,195) (6,482,149)
Stock compensation expenses... — — — 4,517 — — — — 4,517 — 4,517
Transfer from statutory reserves.... — — — — (11,946) 11,946 — — — — —
Balance as of March 31, 2015 3,233,81.  (189,58) 129,35. 85,108,42 1,328,28: (32,999,29¢ (4,663,321  10,848,61 59,752,057 (439,686) 59,312,371

Note: On August 22, 2012, the Board of Directorslaled a special cash dividend of US$1 per eachmmmmstock, except for treasury stock owned by the@any itself. The special cash dividend

was paid on September 5, 2012.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.



GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015, 2014 ANID13

2015 2014 2013
us$ us$ us$
Cash flows from operating activities:
= A (o PR SRT (6,475,890) (10,663,601) (2,071,259
Plus: Income from discontinued operations, NEBRES................evvvveveeescmeeeeene — 5,547,024 2,589,063
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rethcprovided by (used in)
operating activities:
AMOITIZALION ... ..ottt et e e e e e e e et ee e e eemennan, 101,929 103,117 100,243
DEPIECIALION ....eeeeiiiiie ettt et e ekt e e st e e e i e e e s eam e e 3,665,474 2,759,120 2,006,276
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, plant and popgnt...................... 37,094 (134,669) 43,311
Provision for impairment of property, plant and gaoent........................... 7,907 159,209 —
Stock COMPENSAtiON EXPENSE .....ccceie ittt e e e e e e e e 4,517 36,378 258,128
Shares issued to an eMPIOYEE .........ovi i — — 9,108
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments........ccccccceeevvvvcceeeeenn, — (1,052) —
Realized gain on available-for-sale invesStments. co..........ccccoeeeeeeeeviiiiinennns — (13,980) —
D= (=T =T N = SR (8,001) — (21,861
FOreign eXChange ..........coociviiiiiiiri e (34,275) (36,076) 451,079
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and hills receivable..............ccccceeeeei i 754,445 (5,406,403) 11,305,230
Prepaid EXPENSES ...t i e e e et cmmme e et e e s e e e s e e e e e e e taee e e ae e rarar—a—e, 28,182 43,768 (136,367
Deposits and Other @SSELS......uuuiiiiiiiiceeeeeee e 97,222 (1,875,017) 37,744
INVENTOMIES ...t e et e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e eenn e e eaeas 757,417 (2,096,040) 176,868
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ..ceeviiieeee i ee e e e e e e e e 1,746,421 5,481,337 (538,343)
Accrued salaries, allowances and other employeefit@n................ccceennes 95,015 97,808 1,217,697
Other accrued liabilities............oiiiiii e e (654,305) 305,863 3,924,708
Amount due from a related Party........cooeccccceeeeieecciiiiee e s — 6,272 (7,043
INCOME tax PAYADIE.......cooiiiiiiie i (208,400) (423,781) (1,495,46%
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities eatinuing operations........ (85,248) (6,110,723) 17,849,117
Cash provided by (used in) operating activitiesseahtinued operations............. — 427,326 (7,903,004
Net cash provided by (Used in) OPerat.........cccccevvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (85,248) (5,683,397) 9,946,113
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and agaigi..............ccvvveeeeiiiinennnnnes — 163,683 160
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant aqudment.............ccccceeeeien v, 12,818 68,940 (209,80}
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ...........ccccccvveee i (1,518,904) (5,987,481) (6,846,44%
INCrease iN tiMe dEPOSIES ....uuuuuu i e e e e e s (1,324,318) (11,339,515) —
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale iNW@sttS ................cccvvveeeemmenes 1,000,000 18,218 2,000,000
Cash used in investing activities — continuing @ens.............ccccc.evvvvvvvieeen (1,830,404) (17,076,155) (5,056,088
Cash used in investing activities — discontinue@rapons ...........ccccccvveeeeereecns — (32,682) (260,517
Net cashused in investing actiVItieS ...............ummmmerererieeeiee s eeeees (1,830,404) (17,108,837) (5,316,603




GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015, 2014 ANID13

Cash flows from financing activities:

Receipts (Deposits) of restricted Cash.....cccceeciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiees
Proceeds from (Repayments of) short-term bank loans...............c..cvveeeennnn.
Proceeds from exercise of StOCK OPLIONS... . s e eveerrriieirieiee e e ennes
Cash dividend Paid .........ccooieieiiiiiii e e

Cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesontinuing operations............
Cash used in financing activities — discontinuedrapions..................ooccvuvecen

Net castprovided by (used in) financing actiVitieS ...ceeevvveveeeeeee e vicmeeivieeeeen,
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on Cash...........oooeceeeviiiininnnnn,

Net decrease in cash and cash €qUIVE.............cccccvviiiiiiiiieee e
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fisal.ye...............cccvvicemerennnns

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal yearl..........cccccoeevieeneiiiieiiniiinnnn.

Supplemental disclosure information:

Cash paid fOr INtErESt.........uuiiiiiiiie e
(021 g I o T= 1L B (0] g ¥= V(- TS PR

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.

2015 2014 2013
US$ US$ US$

(5,832,94) 10,738,758 (9,850,513
(513,390 2,478,656 757,941

— 14,250 —
— — (3,040,753
(6,346,330 13,231,664 (12,133,325
(6,346,330 13,231,664 (12,133,325
(56,364) (4,505) 96,458
(8,318,346) (9,565,076) (7,407,357
22,820,300 32,385,376 39,792,733
14,501,954 22,820,300 32,385,376
240,587 137,687 109,749
5,762 169,526 700,334




GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. (“Global-T&atiormerly known as Global-Tech Appliances Inis)primarily an
investment holding company, which was incorporatetthe British Virgin Islands on May 2, 1991. GléfJaech and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referrechtothe “Company”) is primarily a manufacturer ohsomer electrical products
including, but not limited to, electronic and opticomponents. The Company’s manufacturing operagidocated in
Dongguan, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRThe Company’s products are primarily sold totooters located in the
PRC.

Effective December 10, 2008, Global-Tech’s commtoglswas no longer traded on the New York Stockhaxge and
commenced trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market4tidg”) under the symbol “GAI". Global-Tech also sbed its name to
“Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.”, effectias of the close of business on December 10, 2008.

To satisfy the minimum bid price requirement of g, Global-Tech’s Board of Directors authorizecharendment to
Global-Tech’s Memorandum of Association to effedtfor-1 reverse stock split of the issued andtentding shares of
common stock of Global-Tech, effective as of thaselof business on December 10, 2008 (the “Effeddate”). Global-Tech
also proportionally reduced the authorized numlbéisccommon and preferred stock by four to 12,800,and 250,000,
respectively. These consolidated financial statéspresent common stock, preferred stock and simien information to
reflect the above-mentioned reverse stock spld ogtroactive basis.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of Global-Tech’s subsidiaries as of Mardh 3015 were as follows:

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation/ attributable to
Name registration the Company Principal activities
Global Display Holdings Limited........... British Virgin Islands 100 Investment holding
Kwong Lee Shun Trading Company Hong Kong 100 Leasing of a property
Limited .......oooiiiiieee e
Consortium Investment (BVI) Limited.... British Virgin Islands 100 Investment holding
GT Investments (BVI) Limited............... British Virgin Islands 100 Investment holding
Global Optics Limited..........cccccvvvvereeeennn. Hong Kong 100 Trading of raw materials and
electronic and optical
components
Dongguan Wing Shing Electrical PRC 100 Factory complex rental a
Products Factory Company Limited maintenance
("DWS") ettt
Guangdong Lite Array Company PRC 100 Developing, manufacturing and
Limited (“DGLAD”) (formerly known marketing of electronic and optical
as Dongguan Lite Array Company components
Limited) .......vveeeeeiiieeeieee e
Dongguan Microview Medical PRC 100 Manufacturing and distribution of
Technology Company Limited.......... medical instruments
Joke Media Limited..........cccoevvveeeeriicenn. PRC 100 Media services
Global Household Products Limited...... Hong Kong 100 Inactive
Pentalpha Medical Limited.................... Hong Kong 100 Inactive
Pentalpha Hong Kong Limited............... Hong Kong 100 Inactive
Global-Tech USA, InC........cccuvvveeveeeenenn, State of Delaware, 100 Provision of consultation services

U.S.A.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation/ attributable to
Name registration the Company Principal activities
Global Lite Array (BVI) Limited.............. British Virgin Islands 76.75 Investment holding
Lite Array, INC. ..oovvvveeeiiiiiiciieee e, State of Delaware, 76.75 Inactive

U.S.A.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have begraged in accordance with generally accepted atitguprinciples
in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include ithentcial statements of Global-Tech and its subs&BaThe fiscal year
end date of Lite Array Holdings Limited (“Lite AryaHoldings”), a jointly-controlled entity of the Gmpany, is
December 31. There have been no significant tréiesadn Lite Array Holdings and its subsidiariekieh would
materially affect the Company’s financial positiand results of operations during each of the perfomm Lite Array
Holdings’ fiscal year end date to March 31, 201®l£2and 2013, respectively.

All significant intercompany balances and trangatibetween group companies are eliminated on tidason.

Discontinued operations

Unless otherwise indicated, information presentetthé notes to the consolidated financial statesestates only to
Global-Tech’s continuing operations. Informatiotated to discontinued operations is included irerik® and in some
instances, where appropriate, is included as sepdisclosure within the individual footnotes.

Use of estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financiaéstants in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires maaagnt to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estiniaigments and assumptions affect the amouaitsité reported
in these consolidated financial statements andrapaaying disclosures. The accounting estimates neijard to these
consolidated financial statements that requirentbst significant and subjective judgments incluzig,are not limited to,
valuation of investments and determination of othan-temporary impairment, useful lives of propeplant and
equipment, recoverability of long-lived assetsgedeiination of impairment losses, assessment of ehaddue of
inventories and provision for inventory obsolesegratlowance for doubtful accounts, provision forptoyee benefits,
provision for warranty, recognition and measurenodrurrent and deferred income taxes (includirgpime tax benefit
(expense)), valuation allowance for deferred taets assumptions used for the valuation of optiomsirchase
Global-Tech’s common stock, provision for loss cogencies, and measurement of fair values of firgmestruments.
Changes in facts and circumstances may resulviaa@ estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on lrahbaak deposits, which are unrestricted to withwdzad use, and
other investments that are readily convertible oash with original maturities of three monthsesd.

Restricted cash
Restricted cash consists of bank deposits, whichanly be used to settle pre-arranged general bgrfkicilities.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

(9)

Investments

Debt and equity investments designated as avaifablgale investments are stated at fair value edlized gains or
losses, net of tax, on available-for-sale investsiare included in accumulated other compreheriso@ne (loss), a
separate component of shareholders’ equity. Rehiains and losses and any declines in fair valdggd to be
other-than-temporary on available-for-sale investi®are included in the consolidated statemenpefations and
comprehensive income. Gains or losses on saleve$iments and amounts reclassified from accumutattest
comprehensive income (loss) to earnings are cordpgsed on the specific identification method.degeor dividend
income on securities classified as available-fée-savestments is included in interest income erddind income,
respectively.

Non-derivative securities with fixed or determiraplayments and fixed maturities are classifiededd-to-maturity
investments if the Company has both the posititenition and ability to hold the financial assetsraturity. Investments
intended to be held to maturity are measured attérad cost. Interest on securities classifieded-o-maturity
investments is included in interest income.

Prior to April 1, 2009, declines in the fair valokheld-to-maturity and available-for-sale secesdtbelow their amortized
cost, that were deemed to be other-than-temponeamng all reported in investment gains (losses), Eéective April 1,
2009, the Company adopted new accounting guidamdenpairment of debt securities that are deemédaktother-than
temporary. Factors considered in evaluating pakimipairment include, but are not limited to, therent fair value as
compared to cost or amortized cost of the seclagtygppropriate, the length of time the investrhastbeen below cost
or amortized cost and by how much, our intent tbassecurity and whether it is more-likely-thantmee will be required
to sell the security before the recovery of our gimed cost basis, and specific credit issuesedlad the issuer and
current economic conditions. Under the new impairhmeodel, the credit component of an other-thanpiamry
impairment of a debt security is reported in inugestt gains (losses), net and the noncredit compameaported in other
comprehensive income (loss). In addition, othertteanporary declines in beneficial interests puseldleor retained in a
securitization transaction which are classifiedeailable-for-sale debt securities are recognitéitere has been an
adverse change in the cash flows as of the entteafeporting period. Interest and dividends, a$ ashmortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts, are repontedtérest and dividend income. Amortization ofmprems and
accretion of discounts on debt securities are n@ized over the remaining maturity under the intenesthod.

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture thit subject to joint control, resulting in nonetbé participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic acyiwf the jointly-controlled entity. The Companytsviestment in a
jointly-controlled entity for which it, not beingpé unilateral controlling owner of the entity, thas the ability to exercise
joint control, is accounted for using the equitythosl. Under the equity method, the Company’s priigoate share of
the jointly-controlled entities’ net income or lomsd amortization of any identifiable intangiblesiag from the
investment is included in “Share of income (loss#gdintly-controlled entities”. The Company cease apply the
equity method when its share of the jointly-corlgdlentities’ losses exceeds the carrying valugsanvestment.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 281d 2013, the Company has discontinued the recogrf its share
of losses of the jointly-controlled entities becatise share of losses of the jointly-controlledties exceeded the
Company's interests in the jointly-controlled eesit The Company has no further obligations to foperations.

All other investments for which the Company doeshave the ability to exercise joint control orrsfgcant influence
(generally, when the Company has an investmerdssfthan 20% ownership and no representation dnvbstee’s
board of directors) and for which there is notadiky determinable fair value, are accounted fangishe cost method.
Dividends and other distributions of earnings fremeh investees, if any, are included in income wdeniared. The
Company periodically evaluates the carrying valfigsanvestments accounted for under the cost otwethr impairment
with any loss included in the consolidated statdaméoperations and comprehensive income in thogevhen it is
incurred.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

Accounts and bills receivable

Accounts and bills receivable are presented nahdafllowance for doubtful accounts, which is aimeste of amounts
that may not be collectible. The Company does hatge interest on accounts receivable. The alloavémrcdoubtful
accounts is estimated based on historical expegjgeceivable aging, current economic trends aredifip identification
of certain receivables that are at the risk ofbehg paid. The Company reviews the aged analysisaunts and bills
receivable on a regular basis. Whenever it is ¢legtrthe amounts are deemed to be uncollectibbejvables are written
off against the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etavklue. Cost, calculated on the weighted avebages, comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct tabwl an appropriate proportion of overheads.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than constmudh progress, are stated at cost less accundutegereciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. The cost afeam of property, plant and equipment comprisepltehase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing theedgs its working condition and location for itdéended use. Expenditure
incurred after an item of property, plant and equept has been put into operation, such as repadrsnaintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statemenpefations and comprehensive income in the periachich it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly destrated that the expenditure has resulted ineease in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained fronusigeof an item of property, plant and equipmend, &here the cost of
the item can be measured reliably, the expendisucapitalized as an additional cost of that afdepreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis at annuakrat/er the asset’s estimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purposeaarfollows:

Annual rate
Leasehold improvements .........ccccccvveveeceemeeeeeeeeennn. Over the shorter of the lease terms or the estinate
useful life

BUIIAINGS .ottt 4.5%

PIANE ... 4.5%

= Vo o 11 = o SR 10%

MOUILS .. 20% - 33%

Transportation equipment...........c.ooov v veceemeeveeneenn 15% - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment..........ccccceevvvvvvve. 15%

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereiped upon disposal or when no future economic fiisrere
expected to arise from the continued use of thetashe gain or loss arising on derecognition oiteam of property,
plant and equipment, calculated as the differemteden the net disposal proceeds and the carryimogiat of the item,
is included in the consolidated statement of oj@matand comprehensive income in the period thme isederecognized.
Machinery and equipment used in the home appliBnsmess has been derecognized pending sale.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, @adtequipment under construction or installatiod ia stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses, and ideqeciated. Cost comprises the direct costs aftoaction,
installation and other costs in making the assadydor its intended use. Construction in progiessclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equigtménen completed and ready for its intended use.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

U

(m)

(n)

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are included in impairment eidna when events and circumstances exist thatatelithe carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable cbr@ance with Financial Accounting Standards Bd&f&SB”) ASC
360 “Property, Plant and Equipment” the Compangssss the recoverability of the carrying valueoafjtHived assets
by first grouping its long-lived assets with otlaesets and liabilities at the lowest level for vihidentifiable cash flows
are largely independent of the cash flows of o#s=zets and liabilities (the asset group) and, sigoastimating the
undiscounted future cash flows that are directbpamted with and expected to arise from the usmdfeventual
disposition of such asset group. The Company etgrthe undiscounted cash flows over the remainsedul life of the
primary asset within the asset group. If the cagyialue of the asset group exceeds the estimatdidaounted cash
flows, the Company records an impairment chargbaaextent the carrying value of the long-livedeagceeds its fair
value. The Company determines fair value througbtepimarket prices in active markets or, if quotadiof market
prices are unavailable, through the performandatefnal analysis using a discounted cash flow walogy or obtains
external appraisals from independent valuationdirfrhe undiscounted and discounted cash flow aisak/based on a
number of estimates and assumptions, includingxipected period over which the asset will be @dizprojected future
operating results of the asset group, discountaiatielong-term growth rate. Long-lived assets, wkidg buildings,
associated with the home appliance business antt@ié&c manufacturing services ("EMS") business egdipment that
has been leased to a third party are considerbd impaired and accordingly have been written dowfair value less
the estimated cost of disposal. Since the Compasydased a significant portion of the buildingsvosusly occupied by
the home appliance business and EMS business daaihdeased equipment, the Company was able fonpean
impairment analysis based on anticipated futuréatémcome, and as a result determined that theg wet impaired.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance hetlsecurities and Exchange Commission (the “SEGI S
Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Reaution”, which requires that four basic criteria shtoe met before
revenue can be recognized: (1) there is persuasidence that an arrangement exists; (2) delivasydtcurred or
services have been rendered; (3) the fee is firetkterminable; and (4) collectibility is reasonah$sured. Net sales
represent the gross invoiced amount, net of digspand are recognized when goods are shippedtbnbas passed. To
the extent products are required to meet custopeifications, such products are subject to tediriod quality tests
that are designed to ensure compliance prior fonséint.

Under the Company’s standard terms and conditishgh are mainly Free On Board shipping pointetahd risk of loss
are transferred to the customer at the time thdymtois delivered to the customer’s freight forwerd

Revenue related to camera modules (“CCMs”) shipmntertain telecommunication customers in the BFRC
recognized upon notarized acceptance of the prdduitie customer.

Deposits or advance payments from customers pridelivery and passage of title of merchandiseecerded as
customer deposits.

Revenue related to the provision of tooling incasmeecognized upon the completion of such senacesdelivery of the
related product using the same criteria of SAB N3t stated above.

In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRie-added tax is levied on the invoiced valugates of goods and
is payable by the purchaser. Revenue is recogmieedf all value-added tax imposed by governmemi#horities and
collected from customers concurrent with revenuwspcing transactions.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs represent costs relating to ptional activities intended to stimulate, directlyindirectly, a
customer’s purchase of goods, and are chargectootiisolidated statement of operations and compséheincome as
incurred and are included in “Selling, general adchinistrative expenses” (“SG&A”"). Advertising exges were
US$214,973, US$151,027 and US$223,682 from comtinaperations for the fiscal years ended Marct?2815, 2014
and 2013, respectively. Whereas, nil, US$5,07438#7,489 were from discontinued operations forfigeal years
ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

(0)

()

(a)

(n

Design and development costs

Design and development costs primarily relate éodiist of samples and prototypes and salariesrafrmyineers. The
Company expenses all design and development ct&ts imcurred. Included in the SG&A expenses lieaiin the
consolidated statement of operations and compréreimcome were design and development costs oflL08%,150,
US$498,068, and US$366,001 from continuing opemat{rom discontinued operations 2015, 2014 anc26il,
US$331,424 and US$454,648) for the fiscal yeareemdarch 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Shipping and handling costs

In accordance with FASB ASC 605 “Revenue Recogmitishipping and handling fees billed to custormaesincluded
in net sales in the consolidated statement of dipasaand comprehensive income. Any shipping amdilirdg costs
incurred by the Company associated with the safgaducts are included in SG&A on the face of thesolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive incomen@the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 201h2013,
shipping and handling costs charged to SG&A wer§1¥73,792, US$202,112 and US$167,411 from continuing
operations (from discontinued operations 2015:24lL4: US$54,729 and 2013: US$160,384), respegtivel

Any inbound freight charges, receiving, inspecti@arehousing and internal transfer costs incurgethb Company are
expensed as cost of goods sold. During the fiseatsyended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, inbaeight costs
charged to cost of goods sold were US$37,591, US88land US$21,434 from continuing operations (from
discontinued operations 2015: nil, 2014: nil and2il), respectively. Other related costs arduded in manufacturing
overheads.

Foreign currencies

All transactions in currencies other than functionarencies during the year are translated aeohange rates
prevailing on the respective transaction dates. éfemy assets and liabilities existing at the badastteet date
denominated in currencies other than functionalengies are remeasured at the exchange ratesgxistithat date.
Exchange differences are recorded in the conselidsiatement of operations and comprehensive income

The functional currency of Global-Tech is the D®Bllar (“US$”). The financial statements of all sidiaries are
translated in accordance with FASB ASC 830 “Fordigmrency Matters”. All assets and liabilities &anslated at the
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheetagat@ll income and expense items are translatie @tverage rates of
exchange over the year. All exchange differencisingrfrom the translation of subsidiaries’ finagcstatements are
recorded as a component of comprehensive incortssr

Income taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided using the assbtiability method in accordance with FASB ASQ@74ncome
taxes’. Under this method, deferred income taxes aregeized for all significant temporary differencésnacted rates
and classified as current or non-current based tipolassification of the related asset or ligpiln the consolidated
financial statements. A valuation allowance is jted to reduce the amount of deferred tax assétisitonsidered more
likely than not that some portion of, or all, theferred tax asset will not be realized.

FASB ASC 740 clarifies the accounting for unceiain income taxes recognized in an enterpris@aricial statements,
and prescribes a recognition threshold and measunteattribute for the financial statement recognitand measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be takemtizx return. It also provides accounting guidamtele-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accouniinigterim periods, disclosure and transition. tet and penalties from
tax assessments, if any, are included in incomestaxthe consolidated statement of operationamprehensive
income.

The Company records its possible interest and pesalue to any potential underpayment of incommedaif and when
required, in interest expense and other expensgsectively.

The Company did not provide for deferred incomesaand foreign withholding taxes on the undistedutarnings of
foreign subsidiaries. The Company intends to peentiynreinvest foreign subsidiaries’ earnings.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

v)

(w)

Stock compensation expense

The Company adopted FASB ASC 718 “CompensationkSTmnpensation”, and related interpretations iroanting
for its employee share-based payment transacthmordingly, stock compensation cost is measuretetiate of grant
and estimated using the option pricing model. Stesked to an employee as compensation is meaatifed value
based on the grant date quoted market price. Timpeonsation cost for share-based awards with seceicditions is
amortized over the vesting period of the awardsguie straight-line method provided that the amoficompensation
cost recognized at any date must at least equaldtion of the grant date fair value of the awtdnat is vested at that
date.

The Company accounts for stock options grantedcmuaterparty other than an employee in accordaitbeFASB ASC
505 “Equity”. Fair value of the equity instrumetigsecognized on the measurement date which isaHir of (i) a
commitment for performance by the counterpartyaimehe equity instruments being reached or (&) dbunterparty’s
performance being completed.

Retirement costs

Retirement cost contributions relating to definedtdbution plans are made based on a percentate oélevant
employees’ salaries and are included in the cotatdd statement of operations and comprehensiomiaas they
become payable. The assumptions used in calculdtengbligation for retirement cost contributiorepdnd on the local
economic environment, interpretations and practicesspect thereof.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and eglownership remain with the lessor are accouftteds operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases angy ofcentives received from the lessors are dubrg the
consolidated statement of operations and compréaleimcome on a straight-line basis over the pedbthe relevant
leases.

Assets leased out under operating leases are attind'Property, plant and equipment” in the coitiaiked balance sheet.
They are depreciated over the expected useful imes basis consistent with similar owned itemproperty, plant and
equipment. Rental income (net of any incentivegito lessees) is recognized on a straight-linis loa®r the lease
terms.

Earnings (loss) per share

Basic earnings or loss per share of common stoctirigputed by dividing the net income or loss awdddao common
shareholders for the year by the weighted averagger of shares of common stock outstanding duhiegear.

Diluted earnings or loss per share of common steftkcts the potential dilution that could occusécurities or other
contracts/arrangements to issue shares of commok were exercised or converted into shares of comstock.
Common equivalent shares, comprised of incremsihi@les of common stock issuable upon the exertisteak options,
are included in diluted earnings or loss per sifateey have a dilutive effect by application oetireasury stock method.

Treasury stock

The Company accounts for the acquired shares ofitscapital stock (“treasury stock”) in accordamgth Accounting
Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 43, Chapter 1B, andcAunting Principles Board Opinion No. 6, “Statfig\ocounting
Research Bulletins”. The cost of the acquired treastock is shown as a deduction from shareholeégrsty. Gains on
sale of treasury stock not previously accountechfoconstructively reissued are credited to additipaid-in capital
while losses are charged to additional paid-intefpd the extent that previous net gains fromghle or retirement of the
same class of stock are included therein, othenhis¢oss is charged to retained earnings/accuetlldgficit.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

)

v

@)

(aa)

(ab)

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the diolated change in equity of the Company during @ogefrom
transactions and other events and circumstancésdaxg transactions resulting from investments imers and
distributions to shareholders. Total net compreiveriscome (loss) includes net income or loss lieryear as well as
additional other comprehensive income (loss). Tamg@any’'s other comprehensive income (loss) consfdtse
Company’s share of other comprehensive incomeioflyecontrolled entities, unrealized gains andskes on
available-for-sale investments and foreign curramagslation adjustments, all recorded net of tax.

Accruals and loss contingencies

The Company makes provision for all loss contingesievhen information available prior to the issuantthe
consolidated financial statements indicates thatprobable that an asset has been impairediabiéity has been
incurred at the date of the consolidated finarsti@ements and the amount of loss can be reasoestityated.

For provision or accruals related to litigationcisb insurance, property tax, etc, the Company mgkevisions based on
information from legal counsel and the best esiiomabf management. The Company assesses the pbietiility to be
recorded if the contingency loss is probable aedatinount of loss can be reasonably estimated. dthalaesolution of
the contingency may differ from the Company’s esties. If the contingency was settled for an amguediter than the
estimate, a future charge to income would resitewise, if the contingency was settled for an amdhat is less than
our estimates, a future credit to income would ltesu

Segment reporting

The Company follows FASB ASC 280 “Segment Repottibyiring fiscal 2015, the Company operated and aged its
business in two segments. The Company exited th® Bliness in December 2013 and home appliancedsssin
January 2012 and thus the home appliance and EltSeses are presented as discontinued operatioesaddounting
policies used in its segment reporting are the sasrtbose used in the reporting of its resulthéndonsolidated financial
statements.

Warranty cost

The Company estimates its warranty provision fdeckeve products based on various factors includireglikelihood of
defects, an evaluation of its quality controlsht@cal analysis, industry information on comparatdenpanies and its
own experience. Based on the above consideratierCompany has accrued for warranty costs of US$801for the
year ended March 31, 2015 (2014: US$869,734 and:208$403,627). The basis and the amount of theangyr
accrual are reviewed and adjusted periodically daseactual experience.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized when receivedhanstipulated activities are achieved. Such ansoarg included in
other income (expenses), net in the consolidateérsent of operations and comprehensive income.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

(ac)

(ad)

Retained Earnings and Reserves

The Company’s retained earnings are not restraseih the payment of dividends except to the extistated by prudent
business practices. The Company believes that #rereo material restrictions, including foreigrtleatnge controls, on
the ability of its non-PRC subsidiaries to transferplus funds to the Company in the form of castddnds, loans,
advances or purchases. With respect to the Comp&RBC subsidiaries, there are restrictions on dyenpnt of
dividends and the distribution of dividends frore ARC. On March 16, 2007, the PRC promulgated #ve &f the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Ordey.3 of the President of the PRC. Please reflsiote 17 for
further details of the New Law. The New Law becaffective from January 1, 2008. Prior to the enactiof the New
Law, when dividends were paid by the Company’s BRESsidiaries, such dividends would reduce the amafun
reinvested profits and accordingly, the refundaxiss paid might be reduced to the extent of takiegipe to profits not
reinvested. Subsequent to the enactment of thelld@wy due to the removal of any tax benefit relateceinvestment of
capital in PRC subsidiaries, the Company may niatest the profits made by the PRC subsidiariegnfeat of
dividends by PRC subsidiaries to foreign investorgrofits earned subsequent to January 1, 200&is@ be subject to
withholding tax under the New Law. In addition, puant to the relevant PRC regulations, a certaitigpoof the profits
made by these subsidiaries must be set asidetfomefaapital investment and are not distributabiel the registered
capital of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are @dstricted. Under applicable PRC regulations, fprénvested
enterprises in China may pay dividends only ouheir accumulated profits, if any, determined ie@dance with the
PRC accounting standards and regulations. In aaddliéi foreign-invested enterprise in China is nexfuito set aside at
least 10% of its after-tax profit based on PRC aotiog standards each year for its general resenviéishe cumulative
amount of such reserves reaches 50% of its registapital. These reserves are not distributabbasts dividends. The
board of directors of a foreign-invested enterphias the discretion to allocate a portion of iterafax profits to staff
welfare and bonus funds, which may not be disteétub equity owners except in the event of liquatatHowever, the
Company believes that such restrictions will noteha material effect on the Company’s liquiditycash flows.

Statutory Reserves

The PRC subsidiaries are required by the releaaws bnd regulation to transfer at least 10% of thféer-tax profit
determined in accordance with the PRC accountilegrand regulations to a statutory surplus resemiésuch reserve
balance reaches 50% of their registered capital.

The Company transferred US$101,868 out of afteptafit of its PRC subsidiaries to the statutoryeneves for the year
ended March 31, 2014. For the year ended MarcB@®115, US$11,946 has been transferred out of thetsts reserve.

The statutory reserves can only be utilized toetffsior years’ losses or for capitalization agigai capital. No
distribution of the remaining reserves shall be enather than upon liquidation of the PRC subsidgri
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

Recent accounting pronouncements

In March 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-06, “TechhCorrections and Improvements Related to Glgsarms”.
The amendments in this Update relate to glossamystand cover a wide range of Topics in the Caodliiom. These
amendments are presented in four sections: Delefidtaster Glossary Terms (Section A), AdditionMdister Glossary
Term Links (Section B), Duplicate Master Glossagynis (Section C), and Other Technical Correctioalated to
Glossary Terms (Section D). The amendments inpidate do not have transition guidance and wikthective upon
issuance for both public entities and nonpublidgtiest The Company is currently evaluating the mpeenouncement to
determine the impact it may have on its consolidifiteancial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Preatiah of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Prtyp@lant, and
Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Ofiers and Disclosures of Disposals of ComponenendEntity
(“ASU 2014-08"). The amendments in ASU 2014-08 dethe criteria for reporting discontinued opernagiovhile
enhancing disclosures in this area. Under the nedagce, disposals representing a strategic shdperations should be
presented as discontinued operations. Additiontilly,new guidance requires expanded disclosurasg dizzontinued
operations that will provide financial statemengngswith more information about the assets, liegi income and
expenses of discontinued operations. The amendrnmeASU 2014-08 are effective prospectively fordiposals (or
classifications as held for sale) of componentaroéntity, and for all businesses that, on acdoisitire classified as held
for sale that occur within annual periods beginrongor after December 15, 2014, and interim perieidsin those years.
The Company is currently evaluating the new proreuament to determine the impact it may have ondtsolidated
financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenom fContracts with Customers (Topic 606) (“ASU 2@BT).

This ASU is a comprehensive new revenue recognitiodel that requires a company to recognize revemdepict the
transfer of promised goods or services to custoimesis amount that reflects the consideration tetvthe entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goodervices. The amendments in this ASU are effed¢tr annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20iduding interim periods within that reportingnnd, with early
application not permitted. Companies may use etifeil retrospective or a modified retrospectippmach to adopt this
ASU and the Company is currently evaluating whiemsition approach to use. The Company is currevifjyuating the
new pronouncement to determine the impact it mag lea its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12, CompemsaStock Compensation (Topic 718): Accountiog f
Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Awaxdderdhat a Performance Target Could Be Achievéel dfie
Requisite Service Period (“ASU 2014-12"). The ammaedts in ASU 2014-12 require that a performanagetathat
affects vesting and that could be achieved afeerdiquisite service period be treated as a perfmcemeondition. The
amendments in this ASU are effective for annuabripg periods beginning after December 15, 20d8uiding interim
periods within that reporting period, with earlypéipation permitted. Companies may use either ageotive or a
retrospective approach to adopt this ASU and thm@2my is currently evaluating which transition aygwh to use. The
Company is evaluating the new pronouncement taméte the impact it may have on its consolidatedriicial
statements.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-01, Ire&tatement - Extraordinary and Unusual Items Gib2225-20):
Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliatimg the Concept of Extraordinary Items (“ASU 2d1B). The
amendments in ASU 2015-01 eliminate from U.S. GAA® concept of extraordinary items. The amendmiarttss

ASU are effective for annual reporting periods begig after December 15, 2015, including interimiqgués within that
reporting period, with early application permitigavided that the guidance is applied from the tueigig of the fiscal
year of adoption. Companies may use either a potispeor a retrospective approach to adopt this A8d the Company
is currently evaluating which transition approastuse. The adoption of ASU 2015-01 is not expetiddthve a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financialestegnts.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coimued)

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Gliatestion (Topic 810): Amendments to the ConsoligatAnalysis
(“ASU 2015-02"). The amendments in ASU 2015-02 dethe analysis that a reporting entity must perfary
determine whether it should consolidate certaiesypf legal entities. The amendments in this AStedfective for
public business entities for fiscal years, andriterim periods within those fiscal years, begimnaiter December 15,
2015. Early adoption is permitted, including adoptin an interim period. If an entity early adoffite amendments in an
interim period, any adjustments should be refleetedf the beginning of the fiscal year that inelsithat interim period.
A reporting entity may apply the amendments in &fJ using a modified retrospective approach bypraing a
cumulative-effect adjustment to equity as of thgibeing of the fiscal year of adoption. A reportiegtity also may
apply the amendments retrospectively. The adomtidkSU 2015-02 is not expected to have a matemiglact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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GLOBAL-TECH ADVANCED INNOVATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

4.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
us$ us$
Cashonhand and at banks ............oiiiiiiiii e, 11,306,011 15,942,867
Money Market FUNAS.......c.c..viiiiiiiiie e e e e e s 3,195,943 6,877,433
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,501,954 22,820,300

The cash on hand and at bank balances in the PbXi&aries are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), téwi States dollars
("US$") and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") with the tdtamount equivalent to RMB50,177,493 (equivalent®%$8,087,014)
and RMB76,953,161 (equivalent to US$12,382,243)fédarch 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Of treseunts,
RMB37,943,526 (equivalent to US$6,115,288) and RBIB62,481 (equivalent to US$10,943,631) are orlitenominated
in RMB as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectivieB is not freely convertible into other currergsibowever, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regufetiand Administration of Settlement, Sale and PayroEForeign
Exchange Regulations, the Company is permitteckt¢bange RMB for other currencies through banksaizbd to conduct
foreign exchange business. Other than RMB, the gastand and at banks of the Company in Hong Kaolgtlae United
States are denominated in HK$ and US$.

TIME DEPOSITS

As of March 31, 2015, a time deposit of RMB75,368,{equivalent to US$12,649,524) (as at March 8142
RMB70,472,817, equivalent to US$11,339,515) wadiépd with a creditworthy bank with an original tonéty of more than
three months when acquired. The time deposit mtezést ranging from 4.0% to 4.4% per annum andiredtduring April
and May 2015.

RESTRICTED CASH

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, time deposits of RMIR39,817 (equivalent to US$9,850,930) and RMB23,500
(equivalent to US$4,013,565) respectively were dépd with and pledged to banks to secure credilittas granted to the
Company, including revolving bank loans.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
The following is a summary of available-for-salétiand equity securities as of March 31, 2015 &2

Net unrealized

Cost gains Fair values
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
USs$ Us$ USs$ Us$ Us$ Us$
Current assets:
Unlisted investments ........cccccoeeevivecivvennnn.. — 1,000,000 — 50,500 — 1,050,500

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, a gdldS$1,052 was recognized on the disposal oCbmpany's listed equity
securities in available-for-sale investments. Dgitime fiscal years ended March 31, 2015 and 204 3jgnificant gain or loss
was recognized on the disposal of the Companyiadlefor-sale investments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

7.

9.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

The fair values of listed equity securities aregobsn quoted market prices at the balance shest dat

Unlisted investments which have remaining termiess$ than 1 year are measured at fair value usimig@ quoted by a third
party, such as a broker or bank, at the balancet slage.

The net unrealized gains consisted of gross uzeshljains as at March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,d9 850,500 and
US$61,054, respectively, and gross unrealized $oasat March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 of nil, mdl @S$1,839,

respectively.

The proceeds from the disposal of available-foe-#alestments for the fiscal years ended Marct2815, 2014 and 2013 were

US$1,000,000, US$18,218 and US$2,000,000, respéetiv

As detailed in note 14 of the consolidated finahsiatements, the unlisted investments had bealyeteto a bank as security

for the short term bank loans of HK$8,008,123 (eglent to US$1,032,334) (2015 and 2013: nil) grdtea Hong Kong
subsidiary for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, NET

Bills receivable...

March 31, March 31,

2015 2014

us$ Uss$
ACCOUNLS FECEIVADIE ...eee e 15,221,389 15,833,127
Less: Allowance for doubtful aCCOUNLS ........ceeeveiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (90,617) (74,413)
Accounts receivable, NEL..........ooooi i e 15,130,772 15,758,714
.............................................................................................. 5,362,900 5,458,170
20,493,672 21,216,884

Accounts and bills receivable, NEt ... ieiieiieeeeeeee e

Fiscal years ended

March 31, March 31, March 31,
2015 2014 2013
uss$ us$ us$
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Balance at beginning of fiscal year........occoeeeiiiiiiiiceiiiiiee e, 74,413 — —
Yo Lo 1) 110 o - 16,204 74,413 —
Balance at end Of fISCal YEAr ............ . mereevrnniiiiniieieeeeeaeieeeieeeieees 90,617 74,413 —
INVENTORIES
March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
uss$ us$
RAW MALEIIAIS ....ooueeiiii e e e 3,016,372 2,491,135
WOTK IN PrOGIESS .ieieeii ettt e e e ettt e e e e e e e e s e e e st te e e aeaeessnsneenaeaeens 2,359,350 2,303,800
FINISNEA QOOUS. ......ciiiiiieiiiii it e e e e e e e e e e et e e e et seeraraa e aaaeaaeaeees 1,043,056 2,367,932
6,418,778 7,162,867

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 20142843, a write-down of inventories to fair markatue of US$896,534,
US$804,256 and US$867,312, respectively, was rézedrin the consolidated statement of operatiomscamprehensive
income, of which nil were included in income (lof®)m discontinued operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirad)

10.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A related party is any party that controls, jointhntrols or can significantly influence the managet or operating policies of
the Company. Such parties would also include afék, investments accounted for by the equity niethncipal shareholders,
management, directors and the immediate family negmbf principal shareholders, management or direct

In addition to the transactions and balances @eta@lsewhere in the consolidated financial statésrfen the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company hatbtlosving material transactions with related pastauring those years:

The Company incurred annual motor car rental exggefar the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 20112013 of
approximately US$58,811, US$57,241 and US$57, BEpeactively. These expenses were payable to adetampany of
which a shareholder is also director of Global-Tecfiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013.

The Company incurred annual real estate rentalresqsefor the fiscal years ended March 31, 20154 20@ 2013 of
approximately US$332,749, US$315,216 and US$346 /@8pectively, payable to a director of GlobalfTead certain
related companies of which one of their directsralso a director of Global-Tech. Included in tferesaid annual real estate
rental expenses were amounts of US$239,889, USE28and US$239,811 paid to a director of GlobalhTeleiring the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respBgtivhich were included in his remuneration foe respective fiscal
years as housing allowances.

The amount due from a related party, of which dnhe directors of Global-Tech was a shareholdesfadarch 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, is unsecured, interest-free anddéiged term of payment.
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11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
USs$ us$
Leasehold improvements and buildings .......cccccccveeeeeii i 33,007,390 32,953,940
Plant and MacChiNery ..........coovviviiiievtmmmmmm et ee e e e e e e e ee e e e eeeee e 28,542,918 28,072,532
IMOUIAS. ...ttt e et e e snneee e en 784,691 617,380
Transportation €qQUIPMENT............oiievceemmmr e e eeeees e et eee e e e e mmnmeereeeeees 1,536,897 1,527,750
Furniture, fixtures and equUIPMENt .........ooceeeeeii i e 4,648,018 4,541,432
CONSLIUCLION IN PrOGIESS....ciiiieiiieeieeeieeeeeeses e e e e e e e e aetae et eeeeree s aeaeereseerennes 1,596,854 1,259,572
70,116,768 68,972,606
Less: Accumulated depreciation.............cceececeeeeiereiicniniiieirreeeeeees e vmmmereeneeeens (45,941,523) (42,655,648)
Property, plant and equipment, Net.........ccccceeeii e e 24,175,245 26,316,958

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 200842and 2013, impairment losses relating to prgpptant and
equipment of US$7,907, US$2,103,780 and nil, respeyg, were recognized in the consolidated stat&méoperations
and comprehensive income for certain moulds, @adtmachinery, and furniture, fixtures and equiptwérich are no
longer used in the operations of the Company. Impext losses of US$1,944,571 were recognized icotime (Loss)
from discontinued operations” during the fiscalngeanded March 31, 2014.

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, a building vatigregate net book values of approximately US$Bali US$13,094,
respectively, was situated in Hong Kong and bugdiand manufacturing facilities with aggregatebuetk values of
approximately US$11,662,415 and US$13,065,398ectiely, were situated in Mainland China. The lavitere the
manufacturing facilities were situated is held unckrtain land use rights that will expire in 204 to March 31, 2015,
the Company has obtained a sizable portion of thpesty ownership certificates for its building® (Qut of a total of 40
properties) (up to March 31, 2014: 29 out of altofat0). The application for the remaining proyestvnership
certificates will commence only after the land tgét certificates for the relevant pieces of lamd obtained.

The amounts of depreciation charged for theafigears ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 u8#3,665,474,
US$3,957,964 and US$3,342,484, respectively, oElwhiil, US$1,198,844 and US$1,336,208 were inaludeIncome
(Loss) from discontinued operations” for the fisgahrs ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 respBcti

The gains on disposal of property, plant angigggent recognized during the fiscal years endeccMal, 2014 and 2013
were US$11,322 and US$463,358, respectively arsmtdosn disposal of property, plant and equipmet3#$37,094
were recognized during the fiscal year ended M&dH2015. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 26iglCompany
recognized a gain on disposal of property, pladteguipment of US$134,669 which was included imime (loss) from
continuing operations. For the fiscal years endeddi 31, 2015 and 2013, losses on disposal of pgsogeant and
equipment of US$37,094 and US$43,311 respectivaye recognized in income (loss) from continuingragions.

The amount of additions to property, plant eqdipment during the fiscal years ended March 81522014 and 2013
were US$1,502,775, US$6,020,163 and US$7,613,83pectively. The additions in fiscal 2015 and 2@&Be primarily
from the expansion of existing clean room spacepmdhase of equipment and machinery related tcheon-board
("COB") facility. The additions in fiscal 2014 wepeimarily from the acquisition of new office spaoeShenzhen, the
PRC.

As of March 31,2015, the Company has pledgethoeof its buildings situated in Mainland Chini#twa total area of
80,810 square meters with net book value of USE2Q1B5 to a bank to secure credit facilities grantethe Company.
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12.

13.

LAND USE RIGHTS, NET

Land use rights represent prepayments under opgiases for land use for a predetermined timegefhey are charged to
the consolidated statement of operations and cdmpsive income over the lease periods on a strilghbasis. The
Company has the rights to use certain pieces dflzcated in the PRC and has obtained or is iptbeess of obtaining the
land use rights certificates covering a substaptaion of such lands. On August 26, 2006, the Gamy entered into a
supplementary agreement with the Dongguan locabigmuent regarding the use of a piece of land witita area of 45,208
square meters which the Company had occupied. &uirsn the supplementary agreement, the Companyataged a portion
of this land (13,698 square meters in aggregateiziwwas previously used as a recreational arehhas arranged to use the
remaining portion of the land (31,510 square mgiemsil August 6, 2043. However, the Company hagag monthly fees of
RMB59,248 (approximately US$9,533) to the Dongglagal government for the period from January 1,2@0December 31,
2008 and RMB193,048 (approximately US$31,063) fdanuary 1, 2009 onwards until August 6, 2043. Ullaoch 31, 2015,
the Company has obtained a sizable portion o&itd luse rights certificates covering 183,900 sqoagters out of a total area
of 207,300 square meters (up to March 31, 2014erog 183,900 square meters out of a total ar@®8f300 square meters).
The application of certain property ownership ¢iedtes as further detailed in note 11 to the cbdated financial statements
commences only after the land use rights certigieddr the relevant pieces of land have been daddaifihe Company is in the
process of obtaining the remaining land use rights property ownership certificates. However, niiniteve time frame has
been provided by the Dongguan local governmen aghten the certificates will be provided to the Guamy.

WARRANTY PROVISION
Included in other accrued liabilities are warraptgvisions of US$871,000, US$869,734 and US$403:823T March 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively, none of which are fdisoontinued operations. The Company’s warrantiyicduring the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 20%@rismarized below:
Fiscal years ended
March 31, March 31, March 31,

2015 2014 2013

uss$ uss$ us$
Balance at beginning of fiscal Year ........cceceeceeeev v, 869,734 403,627 729,528
FXo [0 L4 T0] g F= 1 I o] (0 1/ (<1 (o] o F PR 173,500 485,229 —
Reversal of unutilized amounts .............ccocuemeeeeeeieeee e (172,233 (19,122) (325,901)
Balance at end of fiSCal YEar.............. e eeveeverriiiiiiiiis e seeeeessmsmmeeiennes 871,000 869,734 403,627
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14.

15.

SHORT TERM BANK LOANS AND BANKING FACILITIES

Global-Tech has provided a bank with: (i) an uredicorporate guarantee for general banking fasligranted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company; and (ii) a securityeament over bank deposits in aggregate of HK$d@llbn (equivalent to
US$1,289,557) for general banking facilities grdrtea subsidiary of the Company without obtainwrgten consent of the
bank for general facilities granted to its Hong @ubsidiaries. The Company has made depositatstzes security for credit
facilities granted to the PRC subsidiaries, inaigdbank loans and bills payable. As of March 31,52@he Company has
pledged certain of its buildings situated in MaimdeChina with total area of 80,810 square metessliank to secure credit
facilities to the Company.

The Company has credit facilities with a numbebarfiks amounting to the equivalent of US$17,848#862US$13,212,260 as
of March 31, 2015 and 2014 respectively. Of themeunts, HK$10.0 million (equivalent to US$1,289,b8Ad HK$10.0
million (equivalent to US$1,289,108) were denomlain Hong Kong dollars as of March 31, 2015 ant¥20@espectively.

Of the credit facilities, the Company utilized aquievalent amount of US$10,283,119 as of March 8152compared to an
equivalent amount of US$7,280,676 utilized as ofdie81, 2014.

Banking facilities of amount equivalent to US$7,58E and US$5,931,584 remained unutilized as otWad, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

The weighted average interest rate of the banksléarnthe years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 w&8®and 0.55% per
annum respectively with an average maturity of 88 24 days from March 31, 2015 and 2014, respdygtive

SHARE CAPITAL

Holders of common stock of Global-Tech have one Yot each stock held on all matters submittedote at a shareholders’
meeting of Global-Tech. Subject to the rights @& Holders of stock with preferential or other spegghts which may be
authorized in the future, holders of common stoc&lobal-Tech are entitled to receive dividemds rata out of assets legally
available therefore and, in the event of the wigdip of Global-Tech, to share ratably in all assetsaining after payment of
liabilities of Global-Tech. The Board of Directas§ Global-Tech may declare interim dividends antbremend a final annual
dividend from retained earnings available for cdisfidends as determined for statutory purposeset imes and in such
amounts as they may determine. Dividends may oalgdzlared and paid out of surplus.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, tharB®f Directors of Global-Tech authorized an anmeent to Global-Tech’s
Memorandum of Association to effect a 4-for-1 reseestock split (the “Reverse Stock Split”) of theued and outstanding
common stock of Global-Tech, effective from Deceniti® 2008 (the “Effective Date”). During the fisgear ended

March 31, 2009, Global-Tech also proportionallyueed the authorized number of shares of its comamoinpreferred stock to
12,500,000 and 250,000, respectively. On the Hffeday, every four shares of common stock of Gldtech issued and
outstanding as of the Effective Date were constdidlinto one share of post-reverse split commotksto
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16.

17.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET

2015 2014 2013

us$ US$ us$
Foreign exchange gains (I0SSeS), NEt......ccueeeeeeiciiiieee e vcivieeeee 49,244 (121,990) 23,900
Gains (Losses) on disposal of property, plant apdpenent................... (37,094) 11,322 463,358
Impairment of property, plant and eqUIPMENt wuevveveeeeeree i eeeeeennn (7,907) (2,103,780) —
Rental income from third partieS............cccceeeveieieie i 957,409 1,292,903 177,556
Management fee received from a third party...........cccceeeeiiimiciinnnn, 52,297 77,944 —
Reversal of (Accrual for) potential tax surchanget,............cccccccvvveeeeennn. (119,873 130,328 (60,622)
GOVEIMMENT GIraNTS ...oiiiiiiieee e et e e et e e e e e ene e e e e e eerenns 1,044,683 837,656 443,468
Sale of scrap materialS........cooovoeii i 128,037 533 213,718
(01 1T £ PP 79,312 311,388 310,201

2,146,108 436,304 1,571,579

Other income (expenses), net from:

2015 2014 2013
Us$ Us$ Us$
(@o] 0111010 TgTe o] o 1=T =11 Te] o IS SRS 2,146,108 2,396,789 583,315
Discontinued OPEratioNS ...........uuuuurueiimmme e eeeeeveeeiiari e mmmm e e e eeae s — (1,960,485) 988,264
2,146,108 436,304 1,571,579

INCOME TAXES

Global-Tech and its subsidiaries are subject torime taxes on an entity basis on the taxable in@nsing in or derived from
the respective tax jurisdictions in which they doeniciled or deemed to operate. Global-Tech anithitsstment holding
subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virginaistls (“BVI") are not subject to tax in the BVI in@rdance with the BVI tax
regulations. The Company conducts substantiallgfats businesses and operations through its disiss located in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

The Company's operating subsidiaries are subjeeatious statutory tax rates, according to theeetye jurisdictions in
which they operate. The Company’s subsidiariesangiKong are subject to Hong Kong profits tax ette of 16.5% on their
assessable income arising in Hong Kong duringittoalfyears ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

The Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PR€uding DWS and DGLAD, are subject to the PRC gantge income tax
("EIT") on income as reported in their PRC statyt@ccounts, adjusted in accordance with relevai@ PRome tax laws and
regulations. DWS and DGLAD are located in a coagpain economic zone in the PRC and, accordinglye wetitled to a
preferential tax rate of 27% (24% reduced tax aaie 3% local income tax rate) for the calendars/eaded prior to
December 31, 2008. During thé Session of the Y(National People’s Congress of the PRC, which vealcided on

March 16, 2007, a unified EIT law was approved bedame effective on January 1, 2008 ("New EIT LaWwte New EIT
Law introduced a wide range of changes which irelin unification of the income tax rate for dorieestvested and
foreign-invested enterprises at 25%. DGLAD is éaito a tax concession period (“Tax Holiday”), wdtgy it was exempted
from EIT for its first two profit-making years atiglentitled to a 50% tax reduction for the succegdhree years. DGLAD has
qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprisé\(TE"). Accordingly, after the expiry of its Taxdliday in December
2011, DGLAD became subject to a preferential ta cd 15% commencing from January 2012. The EIDWS for fiscal
years 2015, 2014 and 2013 remained 25%.
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17. INCOME TAXES (continued)
Income tax benefit consists of:

2015 2014 2013
us$ us$ USs$
Continuing Operations
Income tax benefit:
CUITENE ..ttt emmmr et e e et e e e e (201,045) (255,927)  (820,039)
DEEITEA ...ttt s e (8,001) — (21,861)
Total income tax DeNEfit...........coooviii e (209,046) (255,927)  (841,900)

No income tax expense (benefit) had been chargadigoontinued operations in fiscal 2015, 2014 20#3. The reconciliation
of income tax expense (benefit) computed at thegHOong statutory income tax rate to the total ineqionss) from continuing
operations and discontinued operations before ilectaxes at the effective income tax rate is asidl

2015 2014 2013

us$ us$ Us$
Income tax benefit at the Hong Kong statutory inedax rate.......... (1,103,014) (1,801,722) (480,671)
Foreign rate differential ...........cccceeiieeeeceee e 44,121 (299,512) 30,822
Nor-taxable other iINCOME..........ocvviiiiiiiieeeee e (76,228) (227,440) (386,664)
Non-tax deductible expenses ..., 351,052 1,035,101 670,389
Overprovision of tax in Prior PEriodS........ccveeecvvviviiiieeiiieiirereeeeeen (367,790 (695,630) (1,314,491)
Unrecognized tax benefits ..............ooo i, 156,288 278,338 223,959
Changes in valuation allowance..............cccceviieeeieiiininiiiiiiieeee, 786,525 1,454,938 414,756
Total income tax benefit at the Company’s effeciheme tax rate.... (209,046) (255,927) (841,900)
Hong Kong statutory inCome tax rate ... eeeeeeeeaeinccenreneenees 16.5% 16.5% 16.5%
Effective iNnCoOme tax rate ..........oooueiiicceeeeee e 3.1% 2.3% 28.9%
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17. INCOME TAXES (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of MarchZ®IL5 and 2014 comprise the following:

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014

us$ US$
Deferred tax assets:
Impairment of property, plant and eqUIPMENt. e« vvvvveeereere e, 2,293,850 2,318,586
Provision for iINVENIONES............coeeiiiieeeeeeeee e eeee e, 340,221 238,730
Provision for Warranty ... eeiiiiiiieeicec e e aeeee 217,750 217,434
Operating losses carried forward ...........cccceeeeeiiiiieiiiiiieir e 4,529,238 4,391,655
Gross deferred tax aSSEtS.......uuuiuiiiiiererreee e eeee e 7,381,059 7,166,405
Less: Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.........cccccceeeeevveennee. (7,378,244) (7,166,405)
Net deferred taX aSSELS .....uu it ececceeee e 2,815 —
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax over book depreciation of property, plant aqdipment.................. — (5,183)
Total deferred tax liabilitieS ..........ovvveceeeeieiiiie e — (5,183)
Fiscal years ended
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2015 2014 2013
uss$ uss$ us$
Valuation allowance:
Balance at beginning of fiscal year .........coaooooiiiciiiiiiienen. 7,166,405 5,757,984 5,185,404
AdAItIONS ... eerer e e 185,874 1,454,938 414,756
Exchange realignment...............uuuuveesmmmmnceeeeeeeeeeransennnnnn s ommnnes 25,965 (46,517) 157,824
Balance at end of fiscal year ..............comm e e iieieeeeeeeeeeieee, 7,378,244 7,166,405 5,757,984

For financial reporting purposes, the Company Istabdished valuation allowances by tax jurisdiciondeferred tax assets,
which management believes are more likely thartmbe realized in the foreseeable future. As ofda81, 2015 and 2014,
the Company had tax losses carried forward of UE#Z6644 and US$25,530,406, respectively, whictuded tax losses of
US$6,447,281 and US$5,591,707 respectively thadeaiable indefinitely for offsetting against fututaxable income of the
companies in which these losses arose. Tax l0$4¢S$%20,172,364 and US$19,938,699 as at March@®15 2and 2014,
respectively, may be carried back for 2 years atiedforward for 20 years from the year the tessks arose.

A reconciliation of the movements of unrecognizaxitbenefits under FASB ASC 740 during the fiscargeended March 31,

2015 and 2014, exclusive of related interest amdlipies, is as follows:

Fiscal years ended

March 31, March 31,

2015 2014

uss$ uss$
Balance at beginning of fiscal year..........ccccaeiiii e 8,589,164 8,870,677
Additions based on tax positions related to thearuryear ..............coooiiviiecac e 630,012 422,094
Reduction for tax positions related to Prior Year..........c.eevveiveiciieeeeeeee e (217,785) (700,780)
EXchange realignmeEnt ..............eueiiiii ittt e e e e e e 7,256 (2,827)
Balance at end Of fISCal YA ............. ettt 9,008,647 8,589,164
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17.

18.

INCOME TAXES (continued)

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s urgeized tax benefits under FASB ASC 740 of US$4,828 and
US$4,454,069, respectively, are presented in thedlmlated balance sheets within income tax paydlile remaining balance
of US$4,608,819 and US$4,135,095 as of March 3152Md 2014, respectively, are set off againsttneesponding tax
losses carried forward.

If the unrecognized tax benefits under FASB ASC @d®f March 31, 2015 were realized in a futurégoeithese would result
in a tax benefit of US$4,399,828 (US$4,454,069fddarch 31, 2014) and a reduction of the Compaeffective tax rate.

For all the years presented and in accordanceRi®B ASC 740, the Company classified interest astémtial penalties
relating to any underpayment of income taxes ameuain tax positions, if and when required, asregt expense and other
expenses, respectively. For the fiscal years emMidh 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company reversedesttand potential
penalties of US$213,976 and US$1,021,397, respdytikelating to certain uncertain tax positionsténconsolidated statement
of operations and comprehensive income. For tlealfigear ended March 31, 2015, the Company acdnterest and potential
penalties of US$122,091 relating to certain undetix positions in its consolidated statementpdrations and
comprehensive income. As of March 31, 2015 and 201Company had accrued interest and potentigllfies relating to
uncertain tax positions amounting to US$559,313d88436,920, respectively.

One of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries wader examination by the Hong Kong tax authoritpiiior years. The
tax period open for examination by the tax autlyaritluded the fiscal years ended March 31, 200&uiph 2011. During fiscal
2013, the Company’s subsidiary and the Hong Korgtahority reached an agreement to settle thaudi case with
additional assessable profits of HK$12,520,654 ifedent to US$1,612,967) being raised together wéhalty and interest on
tax undercharged, for which the amount had alrdsy provided for within FASB ASC 740. The totaleamt of penalty and
interest paid was HK$2,000,000 and HK$466,249 (exjeint to US$257,649 and US$60,064), respectivehjch were
included in “Other income, net” and “Interest inamet” from continuing operations.

The PRC tax authorities could determine that atgrinompany payable account in accordance with BR&P could be
deemed income if such inter-company payables cdmmeettled and therefore would be subject to i@xaln accordance with
FASB ASC 740, we evaluated our position and deteechthat such inter-company payables will be sktparticularly since
prior year tax assessments have been confirmeldebly RC tax authorities and such inter-company gagatere not deemed
as income.

Except as noted above, based on existing tax régudain the Company’s various operating jurisdiot, tax years 2006
through 2015 remain open to possible tax examindtiorelevant tax authorities.

The Company has not provided for possible incorres@n the undistributed earnings of foreign subsiks that are
considered to be reinvested indefinitely.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As previously disclosed and discussed elsewhett@srannual report, the Company completed itsfesih the EMS business
in December 2013.

In the fiscal periods preceding the Company’s &giin the EMS business, profit margins had beerdhgpiecreasing due at
least, in part, to the rising cost of raw materaisl labor in the PRC, together with the unwilliags or inability of our
customers to offset these costs through pricingeamses. Customer pricing demands no longer reflemttual production
costs and, as a result, margins for this businmesscent years approached unacceptable levelstha@tBEMS segment actually
suffering significant losses in fiscal 2013.

In response to the foregoing, on December 15, 20&3Board of Directors approved plans to exitES business in fiscal
2014 while active production for the EMS businesased in December 2013.
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18.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

In accordance with guidance contained in FASB A86-20 “Discontinued Operations”, the results ofratiens for the home
appliance and EMS segments have been excludedcmatinuing operations and reported as discontirpetations for the
current and prior periods.

2015 2014 2013

Us$ USs$ USs$
NEE SAIES....ciiiiiieiiiie e — 2,922,127 14,256,315
Cost 0f go0ds SOId ........ovvvviiiiiii v — (4,323,267) (13,962,647)
Gross profit (I0SS) ...ccoeeieiieieiiiiiiiis e, — (1,401,140) 293,668
Selling, general and administrative expenses............. — (2,185,399) (3,870,995)
Operating l0SS......ccccuviiieiiieiee e eeees _ (3,586,539) (3,577,327)
Other income (expense), Net.........ccvvveveeeeeceernenvnnnnnn — (1,960,485) 988,264
INCOME taX EXPENSES...cceeiiveeerireeeirreemmraeeesireeeeeeeeneees — — —
Loss from discontinued operations, net of.tax............. — (5,547,024) (2,589,063)

Impairment losses of US$1,944,571 were recognizéld loss from discontinued operations in fis@l£for machinery and
equipment that were used in the operations of M8 Eegment and home appliance segment. No impaifosswas
recognized in fiscal 2015 and 2013.
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19. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share of comstock of the Company for the fiscal years endacch 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013 is computed in accordance with FASB ASC ‘BEarnings Per Share” by dividing the net earnifigss) for each
fiscal year attributable to common stockholdersHeyweighted average number of shares of commai statstanding during

that fiscal year.

The following table sets forth the computation a$iz and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

2015 2014 2013
us$ us$ US$
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings (loss)speaire
Income (Loss) from continuing operations..................occuueen. (6,475,890) (5,116,577) 517,804
Income from continuing operations attributable to
NON-CONtrolling INtEreStS ........cccuvvvveet e ee e e e e e e, 55,012 108,044 107,958
Income (Loss) from continuing operations attriblee
shareholders of Global-Tech Advanced Innovatiogs.In..... (6,420,878) (5,008,533) 625,762
Loss from discontinued Operations ..........cceeecceeeeevmmereeeeeennnnn, — (5,547,024) (2,589,063)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders.......................... (6,420,878) (10,555,557)  (1,963,301)
Number Number Number
Denominator for basic and diluted earnings (loss)ghare:
Weighted average number of shares of common stock........ 3,044,227 3,041,625 3,040,310
Us$ us$ USs$
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (Loss) from continuing 0perations. . ......c.c.eeee o (2.12) (1.65) 0.21
Loss from discontinued operations ..........cceeecceeeeeiimereeeeeennnnn, — (1.82) (0.86)
Loss attributable to common stockholder .......cccc.ccveeeiinne, (2.11) (3.47) (0.65)

330,001 and 343,751 stock options of Global-Tecreveacluded from the computation of diluted earsifigss) per share for
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014otisely, because their inclusion would have begidilutive.
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20. COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company hadaagymmitments contracted but not provided fot&$205,435
and US$126,792, respectively, for the purchaseajerty, plant and equipment.

(b) Operating lease commitments

In addition to the land use rights described irerk® to the consolidated financial statementsCii@pany has entered
into various operating lease arrangements for pgrkits, motor vehicles, equipment, land and officemises. The
Company recorded rental expenses, excluding thteuaa rights payments described in note 12 todheatidated
financial statements, for the fiscal years endedc&1, 2015, 2014 and 2013 of US$185,369, US$347ahd
US$361,918, respectively. The Company has leasedentain manufacturing facilities and machinetiehird parties,
and recorded gross lease rental income of US$3,8841JS$1,292,903 and US$177,556 for the fiscalsyeaded
March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetgd@eating leases as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 asfellows:

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
us$ USs$
Payable:
WIithin ONe YEAr ......coeiiiiiiiiii e 349,073 381,394
Over one year but not exceeding two years..................... 342,386 352,290
Over two years but not exceeding three years................. 342,386 352,290
Over three years but not exceeding four yeats................ 342,386 352,290
Over four years but not exceeding five years................... 342,386 352,290
OVEr fIVE YEAIS ..ottt e 7,989,011 8,572,401
9,707,628 10,362,955

Subsequent to March 31, 2015, a subsidiary renginetenancy agreement with a related company setiéed the
leasing term for one year to March 31, 2016, viitre lease payments due of US$92,848 not refldotéhe table
above.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-caiteloperating leases as of March 31, 2015 and 2@td as

follows:
March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
Us$ Us$
Receivable:
WIithin ONe YEar ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiit e 2,965,169 511,923
Over one year but not exceeding two years..................... 2,334,949 —
Over two years but not exceeding three years................. 2,205,811 —
Over three years but not exceeding four yeats................ 2,141,196 —
9,647,125 511,923
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21.

22.

23.

CONTINGENCIES

As of March 31, 2015, the Company has accruedcasrant liability US$4,399,828 (as of March 31, 200S$4,454,069) for
unrecognized tax benefits and US$559,313 (as otMat, 2014: US$436,920) for related interest aamhfiies. The
unrecognized tax benefits relate mainly to potéttzasfer pricing arrangements reflected in theaglong and PRC income
tax returns of certain subsidiaries of the Compaime final outcome of these tax uncertainties etielent upon various
matters including tax examinations, legal procegslircertain authority proceedings, changes in eggy tax laws and
interpretations of those tax laws, or expiratiorstatutes of limitation. However, based on the neindf jurisdictions, the
uncertainties associated with litigation, and ttaus of examinations, including the protocolsinélizing audits by the
relevant tax authorities, which could include fottegal proceedings, there is a high degree of maicey regarding the future
cash outflows associated with these tax uncerésinti

OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES
March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
us$ US$
Yool U T=T0 =N o1 Y=L 2,761,586 2,568,678
(0 11 01T o = e o= 1= 1 o] 1,136,293 832,050
Land use right payable — operating [€ase.....cccccceovvvriiiiiiiiieee e 1,041,140 1,119,005
Other payables for procuring materials for CUSIEMEL............cooviiiiiiiieeeieeieeeeeeen, — 40,278
Rental depoSits FECEIVEU.........iiiiie e e e 639,512 240,247
Other payables for procuring equipment and conslEBaD............cccccceeeeiiiieaeeenenn, 175,533 397,441
10 11 01T o T= 1= L] L= SR 530,018 523,058
6,284,082 5,720,757
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company operates a Mandatory Provident FundPENscheme and an Occupational Retirement Sch@rdteance
(“ORSQ") scheme for all its qualified employeesHong Kong. Both the MPF and the ORSO schemes direedecontribution
programs and are administered by independent fangbanies.

MPF is available to all employees aged 18 to 64vaittal at least 60 days of service as an employaheoCompany in Hong
Kong. Under the MPF scheme, both the Company adll efathe qualified employees contribute the loaies% of the
employees’ basic salary and HK$1,500 (approximdtk8$193), subject to a cap of a monthly basic gaHK$30,000
(approximately US$3,869). Qualified employees antitled to 100% of the Company’s contributions tibge with accrued
returns irrespective of their length of servicehitte Company, but the benefits are required byttale preserved until the
retirement age of 65.

Certain full-time employees in Hong Kong who joirtteé Company before December 2000 are eligiblattigipate in the
ORSO scheme immediately following the date on wiihay have completed their probationary period. &nbdle ORSO
scheme, both the Company and each of the eligibf@ayees contribute 5% of the employees’ basiagala

The costs of these schemes recognized duringdbal fyears ended March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 Y&$50,394,
US$52,119 and US$48,075, respectively.
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23.

24,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

According to the relevant laws and regulationshim PRC, the Company is required to contribute 161&duced from 17.3%
effective from January 2015) of the stipulated esyipk salary set by the local government of Dongdaanertain social
insurance, medical and retirement benefit scheoressfemployees. No forfeited contributions mayused by the employer to
reduce the existing level of contributions. The @amy also provides housing, medical care and sizksigneals to all existing
factory employees. The aggregate amounts incundgbeovided for by the Company for all benefits flactory employees
were US$1,037,248, US$879,811 and US$1,963,178glthe fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 20142848 respectively.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in two segments: Electronmg@ments and Others for the fiscal year ended Mat¢l2015. These
segments are operated and managed as separagistoaisiness units that offer different produets/ses. The Company’'s
“Electronic Components” segment produces compleamgmhetal oxide semiconductors (“CMOS”) CCMs priityafior sale to
cellular phone and tablet manufacturers in the PR©.Company’s “Others” segment comprises a hurobienmaterial
product lines and development programs that havenaterialized to date into full product busines$ésne of these units has
ever individually met the quantitative thresholds determining reportable segments. The chief dipgraecision maker
evaluates the results of each segment in assgssifagmance and allocating resources among the esggm

There were no material intersegment sales or teasisfuring the fiscal years ended March 31, 200542nd 2013.

As stated in note 18 — “Discontinued Operationsé EMS and home appliance segments were discodtiftective in
December 2013 and January 2012 respectively. Thatseof operations of the EMS segment and hombaaqme segment
have been classified as “Income (Loss) from disooed operations” on the face of the consolidatatement of operations
and comprehensive income for all years presenteel hbme appliance segment profit for fiscal yeateenMarch 31, 2013
represented sales of equipment and materials &uhpleviously been written off.
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@ The following table provides operating finahéidiormation for the two reportable segments aisga@htinued segments:

Home Electronic
Appliance# Components EMS# Others Corporate Combined
Uss$ uss$ Uss$ uss$ Us$ uss

As of or for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015
Revenues from external

CUSTOMErS.....iiiiiieiiieieeee e — 75,891,185 — 2,129,670 — 78,020,855
Capital expenditure.................... — 1,474,896 — 27,879 — 1,502,775
Interest iNCOME........ccceeeviiinnaee — — — — 682,045 682,045
Interest expense..........cccevvveenenns — (213,862) — (27,013) (2,217) (243,092)
Depreciation and amortization... — 1,382,540 — 1,903,109 481,262 3,766,911
Segment l0SS.....cvveeeiiiiiiiiiee — (3,881,464) — (1,210,163) (1,329,251) (6,420,878)
Total asSets .......ooveveeeeeiiiiiii e, — 41,822,978 — 5,808,714 47,352,068 94,983,760

As of or for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014
Revenues from external

CUSEOMENS ...ovieieeiiiiiee e eiieeae — 60,574,912 2,922,127 2,117,989 — 65,615,028
Capital expenditure.................... — 5,836,735 32,682 148,269 2,477 6,020,163
Interest income..........coeeevvvnnnnnne. — — — — 822,826 822,826
Interest expense..........cccvvveenenns — (129,775) — — (7,913) (137,688)
Depreciation and amortization... — 1,154,231 1,198,844 379,122 1,328,884 4,061,081
Segment l0SS.....cvveeeiiiiiiiiee, — (1,107,157)  (5,547,024)* (1,502,779) (2,398,597)  (10,555,557)
Total aSSetS ......coovvvveeeiiiiiiieenens — 42,999,530 52,202 1,160,087 55,456,124 99,667,943

As of or for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013
Revenues from external

CUSEOMENS ...ovveieiiiiiiee e iiieeee — 65,188,724 14,256,314 1,638,346 — 81,083,384
Capital expenditure.................... — 6,484,577 767,186 358,813 3,055 7,613,631
Interest income..........coeeeevvnnnnnne. — — — — 1,663,714 1,663,714
Interest expense..........cccevveennnne — (109,749) — — (49,799) (159,548)
Depreciation and amortization... — 554,337 1,336,208 223,915 1,328,267 3,442,727
Segment profit (I0SS).................. 725,773 3,687,547 (3,314,836) (1,182,894) (1,878,891) (1,963,301)
Total aSSetS ......coovvvveeeiiiiiiieceens 34 29,618,065 16,203,482 1,114,654 61,289,608 108,225,843

# As discussed in note 18, the EMS and Home Applia®gments were discontinued in December 201galahuary
2012 respectively. The results of the operationg leeen classified as discontinued operations effeite of the
consolidated statement of operations and compréaleimcome.

* Impairment losses of US$1,944,571 were recogniaedcome (loss) from discontinued operationsrf@chinery and

equipment that was used in the operations of th& Bbgment in fiscal 2014. No impairment loss waegrized in
fiscal 2013.
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Net sales including net sales of discontinugerations by geographic area based on the locafionstomers are as

follows:

Australia
Europe
North Americ:

2015

(c) Net sales including net sales of discontinugerations by product/service type

Kitchen appliances..........ccccceeeiiiiiiiviveeviiiiiinnns
CCMs and related products............cccvvummemeanes
Cellular phone assembly services
Others

(d) Long-lived assets*

Hong Kong
Mainland China

*

37

2014 2013
US$ US$ Uss$
330,873 307,996 533,077
65,976 139,694 326,298
41,429 23,735 49,423
77,391,698 65,143,603 80,174,586
190,879 — —
78,020,855 65,615,028 81,083,384
2015 2014 2013
uss uss$ USs$
330,873 307,996 533,077
75,351,945 59,795,999 63,913,523
652 3,093,146 14,256,314
2,337,385 2,417,887 2,380,470
78,020,855 65,615,028 81,083,384
March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
uss US$
54,520 91,792
26,947,236 29,148,590
27,001,756 29,240,382

Long-lived assets represent land use rights angesty, plant and equipment.
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(e) Major customers
Customers accounting for 10% or more of the Comijsacgmbined net sales are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
uss$ us$ USs$
From continuing operations:
Lenovo Mobile Communication Technology
Ltd. ("LENOVO”) .eoeviiiriiieiiiieeee et 7,281,584 21,688,510 26,799,405
Wingtech Group (“Wingtech”)...........cc......... 8,410,214 8,000,133 4,477,345

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 281d 2013, 9.3%, 33.0% and 33.0%, respectively@flbmpany’'s
combined net sales including discontinued operatisere made to Lenovo, which is an unrelated custoAs of
March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, 12.5%, 33.3% arPB4respectively of the Company’s total accounts lilts
receivable were from Lenovo. Lenovo is a custonieghe® Company’s electronic components segment.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2015, 241d 2013, 10.8%, 12.2% and 5.52%, respectiveli@ftompany’s
combined net sales including discontinued operatisere made to Wingtech, which is an unrelatedocust. As of
March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, 12.4%, 13.8% arfb 5r8spectively of the Company’s total accounts litisl
receivable were from Wingtech. Wingtech is a custoaf the Company’s electronic components segment.
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25.

26.

CONCENTRATION OF RISKS
Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to significant concentrations of credik psimarily consist of cash
and cash equivalents, time deposits, restricteld, @asilable-for-sale investments, financial assetkided in deposits and
other assets and accounts and bills receivable.

Substantially all of the Company’s cash and caslivetents, time deposits, restricted cash, intenestivable, and
available-for-sale investments were financial astwt management believes are of high credit tyuali

The Company’s concentration on a limited numberustomers will continue to represent a substaptigion of our sales for
the foreseeable future. The loss of any major coste or a decrease or delay in orders, or antaipsppending by such
customers could materially reduce our revenuespaoiitability. Our largest customers could also &g in business
combinations, which could increase their size, cediheir demand for our products as they recogynergies or rationalize
assets and increase or decrease the portion ofties to any single customer.

The Company conducts credit evaluations of itsausts but does not require collateral or othersigciuiom its customers.
The Company makes allowance for doubtful accouritsagily based on the age of receivables and factarrounding the
customers’ credit risk.

Current vulnerability due to certain concentrations

The Company’s operations are mainly conducted ingH¢ong and Mainland China with a majority of itdes from
continuing operations to Asia. As a result, the @any’s businesses, financial condition, resultsperations and cash flows
may be influenced by the political, economic arghleenvironments in Hong Kong and Mainland Chimal by the general
state of the Hong Kong and Mainland China economies

The Company'’s operations may be adversely affdeyegignificant political, economic and social unieetties in Mainland
China. Although the PRC government has been pugséonomic reform policies for more than 20 yeacsassurance can be
given that the PRC government will continue to persuch policies or that such policies may notigpeificantly altered,
especially in the event of a change in leadersupial or political disruption or unforeseen ciratemces affecting its political,
economic and social conditions. There is also rargnutee that the PRC government’s pursuit of ecanogforms will be
consistent or effective.

A significant portion of the Company’s businestgr@sacted in RMB, which is not freely convertibiieo foreign currencies.
On January 1, 1994, the PRC government abolisreeduhl rate system and introduced a single ragxaliange as quoted
daily by the People’s Bank of China. However, théioation of the exchange rates does not implydtevertibility of RMB
into United States dollars or other foreign curieacAll foreign exchange transactions continutake place either through the
People’s Bank of China or other banks authorizdoitpand sell foreign currencies at the exchantgsguoted by the
People’s Bank of China. Approval of foreign currepayments by the People’s Bank of China or othstitutions generally
requires submitting a payment application form thgewith suppliers’ invoices, shipping documestgned contracts and/or
other documents, as appropriate.

A significant portion of the Company’s sales inyogis years from discontinued operations were ntadlee U.S. and the
Company is responsible for ensuring that its préglace safe and satisfy all of the requiremente@fconsumer products safety
commission (“CPSC”) in the U.S. This may also agplYDEM products manufactured by the Company téocner
specifications. In the event of a recall requirgdhie CPSC, the customers may require the Compapsotide replacement
conforming units at its cost, which could have daral adverse effect on its business, quality tefion and results of
operations.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company'’s financial instruments that are suliecredit risks are limited to its cash and ceghbivalents, time deposits,
restricted cash, available-for-sale investmentspacts and bills receivable, financial assets idetlin deposits and other
assets, amounts due from a related party.

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesramgnized initially at cost which is the fair valaf the consideration given
(in the case of assets) or received (in the cafiahilities). Transaction costs are included ia thitial measurement of all
financial assets and liabilities. Subsequent tiainiecognition, assets and liabilities are eith@ued at cost, amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method or falugadepending on classification.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table sets forth the carrying valaesl estimated fair values of the Company’s findrasaets and liabilities
recognized as of March 31, 2015 and 2014. There wematerial unrecognized financial assets ahditias as of March 31,
2015 and 2014.

Carrying value Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014
us$ us$ Us$ us$
Current financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ................cccc.... 14,501,954 22,820,300 14,501,954 22,820,300
Time deposSitS.......ccocvvvviiriieeee s 12,649,524 11,339,515 12,649,524 11,339,515
Restricted cash........ccooooviiviieiiicceieeeeee e, 9,850,930 4,013,565 9,850,930 4,013,565
Available-for-sale investments.............c......... — 1,050,500 — 1,050,500
Accounts and bills receivable, net................ 20,493,672 21,216,884 20,493,672 21,216,884
Financial assets included in deposits and other
ASSELS vt 1,538,102 586,022 1,538,102 586,022
Amount due from a related patrty.................. 15,475 12,569 15,475 12,569
Total financial asSets .........ccoeevvievvviieirireeeeee e, 59,049,657 61,039,355 59,049,657 61,039,355
Carrying value Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014
us$ us$ Us$ US$
Current financial liabilities:
Short term bank [oans ............ccceeeveiivieeeenn. 6,780,394 7,279,629 6,780,394 7,279,629
Accounts and bills payable ...............cccceeeene, 14,248,741 12,520,080 14,248,741 12,520,080
Accrued salaries, allowances and other
employee benefits ..o, 3,077,943 2,980,622 3,077,943 2,980,622
Other accrued liabilities..........cccooeevvvevumeemenees 6,284,082 5,720,757 6,284,082 5,720,757
Total financial liabilities...........ccoeiiieeeiiie e 30,391,160 28,501,088 30,391,160 28,501,088

The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash and egslvalents, time deposits, restricted cash, atscand bills receivable,
financial assets included in deposits and othetasamounts due from a related party, short temk bbans, accounts payable,
accrued salaries, allowances and other employesfiteand other accrual liabilities approximateheir fair values because of
their short maturities. The available-for-sale istveents are stated at quoted market price.

The Company’'s cash and cash equivalents, time def@ogl restricted cash are placed primarily wahling institutions in the
PRC with high credit ratings. The Company perfopasodic credit standing evaluation of those bagkirstitutions to limit
the Company’s exposure to any significant credksi

The Company’'s accounts and bills receivable largepyesent amounts due from the Company’s principstomers.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoirig ad the Company’s exposure to bad debts isigiifisant. The
Company does not require collateral or other crexditancement for any of its financial assets.

If the counterparties to the above financial asksit$o perform completely under the terms of tte@ntract/arrangement, the
maximum loss, based on the gross fair value ofitlaacial instruments, due to this credit risk wibbe US$59,049,657 and
US$61,039,355 as at March 31, 2015 and 2014, resplc
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27.

28.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurement and Disclosyrhe Company adopted in fiscal 2009, clarifyttizér value is an
exit price, representing the amount that woulddueived to sell an asset or paid to transfer dityab an orderly transaction
between market participants. As such, fair value isarket-based measurement that should be det=irhased on
assumptions that market participants would useicing an asset or a liability, such as inheresk,rtransfer restrictions and
risk of non-performance. As a basis for considesngh assumptions, it establishes a three-tieevaikrarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation metfiodies in measuring fair value:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedgwi(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabditreactive markets.
Level 2 — Include other inputs that are directlyratirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supportelittte or no market activity.

FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclesyrdescribes three main approaches to measuténigir value of
assets and liabilities: (1) market approach; (2pime approach and (3) cost approach. The markebvagpuses prices and
other relevant information generated from markatgactions involving identical or comparable assetmbilities. The income
approach uses valuation techniques to convertdutarounts to a single present value amount. Theuneaent is based on
the value indicated by current market expectatadrmut those future amounts. The cost approactsisdban the amount that
would currently be required to replace an asset.falr value hierarchy also requires an entity tiximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobsésvaputs when measuring fair value.

The Company'’s financial assets carried at fair @an a recurring basis are detailed in the tadewerlhe fair values of such
financial assets are measured in accordance wiSBFASC 820 inputs, including quoted market price.

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring lzesaf March 31, 2015 and 2014 are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014

Quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets

uss$ us$

Assets
Level 2:
Available-for-sale investments:
Unlisted INVESIMENTS .......oui e e eees — 1,050,500

Total financial assets measured at fair ValUB . ...cooovvveiiiiiiieiieieieieee e, — 1,050,500

STOCK COMPENSATION
(& Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Pl&laifal-Tech

In September 1997, the Board of Directors of Glebeth adopted Global-Tech’s 1997 Stock Option Pésnamended,
the “1997 Plan”). The 1997 Plan provides for thangrof (i) options that are intended to qualifyiracentive stock options
(“Incentive Stock Options” or "1ISO") within the meiag of Section 422 of the U.S. Internal Revenudeof 1986, as
amended (the “Code”) to employees and (ii) optiooisintended to qualify as Incentive Stock Optitmemployees and
consultants. The total number of shares of comnarkf Global-Tech for which options may be grahteder the
1997 Plan is 400,000 shares. The 1997 plan expineseptember 17, 2008 and no further grants canduake from this
plan after that date.

The 1997 Plan is administered by the Board of Danescof Global-Tech, or a committee of directorp@ipted by the
Board of Directors of Global-Tech, who determines terms of options, including the exercise prike,number of stock
subject to the options and the terms and conditidrexercise. No option granted under the 1997 Rlaransferable by
the optionee other than by will or the laws of @gegg@nd distribution and each vested option iscsa&ible within the
contractual period of the option. With respectny participant who owns (or is deemed to own) stoagsessing more
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28.

STOCK COMPENSATION (continued)

(b)

(©)

than 10% of the voting rights of Global-Tech’s daigling capital stock, the exercise price of ary I8ust not be less
than 110% of the fair market value of the stocklendate of grant. The term of each option grapteduant to the 1997
Plan may be established by the Board of DirectbfSlabal-Tech, or a committee of the Board of Dices of
Global-Tech, in its sole discretion; provided, heem that the maximum term of each 1ISO grantedyamtsto both the
1997 Plan is 10 years. With respect to any ISOtgrhto a participant who owns (or is deemed to astogk possessing
more than 10% of the total combined voting powealbtlasses of Global-Tech’s outstanding capitatls, the
maximum term is five years. Shares of common sthskibuted under the 1997 Plan will be from auited, but
unissued stock or common stock held in the treastitye Company. Every option granted shall vest laecome
exercisable in accordance with the terms of thdiegige option agreement. Options can be exerdized period not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

During fiscal 2013, an aggregate of 5,950 optioitk @xercise prices of US$15.60 to US$30.56 peresheere forfeited
upon resignation of the relevant participants.

During fiscal 2014, an aggregate of 65,500 optieitk exercise prices of US$30.40 to US$30.56 exhire
During fiscal 2015, no options were granted andeneere forfeited.
2005 Stock Option Plan of Global-Tech

In October 2005, the Board of Directors of Globak adopted Global-Tech’s 2005 Stock Option Plaa {2005 Plan”).
The 2005 Plan provides for the grant of (i) ISOhivitthe meaning of Section 422 of the Code; (ii4gmalified stock
options that do not qualify as ISO (“NQSOs"); aiii) §tock appreciation rights. The total numbersbfres of common
stock of Global-Tech for which options may be geahtinder the 2005 Plan is 450,000 shares.

The 2005 Plan is administered by the Board of Danecof Global-Tech or a committee appointed byBbard of
Directors of Global-Tech, who determines the teofngptions, including the exercise price, the nundfestock subject
to the options and the terms and conditions of@ser No option granted under the Plan is tranbferby the optionee
other than by will or the laws of descent and thstion and each vested option is exercisable withé contractual
period of the option. With respect to any participaho owns (or is deemed to own) stock possessiorg than 10% of
the voting rights of Global-Tech’s outstanding talstock, the exercise price of any ISO must mokelss than 110% of
the fair market value of the stock on the daterahy The term of each option granted pursuartiéd®ian may be
established by the Board of Directors of Globalff,ear a committee of the Board of Directors of Glbbech, in its sole
discretion; provided, however, that the maximunmtef each ISO granted pursuant to the 2005 P14 igears. With
respect to any 1ISO granted to a participant whosof@nis deemed to own) stock possessing morelt@&mof the total
combined voting power of all classes of Global-Tedutstanding capital stock, the maximum termivs fears. Every
option granted shall vest and become exercisatdednrdance with the terms of the applicable optigreement.
Options can be exercised for a period not exceetlingears from the date of grant.

During fiscal 2014 and 2013, no options were grduated none were forfeited.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, naeshavere granted and 20,000 options with exeraise pf US$8.99
were forfeited.

Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. 2011 Coosi Equity Plan

The Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. 2011 GmasiEquity Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) was adoptedheyBoard
of Directors in October 2010 and approved by thenfany’s shareholders in November 2010. The plawiges for the
grant of stock options (non-statutory and incentigéock appreciation rights, restricted stock sirperformances shares
and common shares.

A committee authorized by the Board of Directors&tdbal-Tech (the “Committee”) will administer tiamnibus Plan.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Dinsctd Global-Tech, the Compensation Committee adininister the
Omnibus Plan. Subject to the terms of the Omniblas,Phe Committee has the sole discretion to séhecemployees,
consultants, and non-employee directors who wilehee awards, determine the terms and conditiomsvafds, and to
interpret the provisions of the Omnibus Plan andtanding awards. The Committee may not, withoetapproval of the
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STOCK COMPENSATION (continued)
(c) Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. 2011 Gosi Equity Plan (continued)

Company’s shareholders, institute an exchange anogmder which outstanding awards are amendedtader for a
lower exercise price or cancelled in exchange feards with a lower exercise price.

Awards granted under the Omnibus Plan are generatlyransferable, and all rights with respectri@ward granted to a
participant generally will be available during atpapant’s lifetime only to the participant. If éhCommittee makes an
award transferable, such award will contain suditemhal terms and conditions as the committee deappropriate.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, 73 @fons were granted to officers and director808 ,options to an
employee and 8,000 options to a consultant.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, naeshavere granted and 3,000 options which had besrieagl to a
director were exercised.

During fiscal 2015, no options were granted andeneere forfeited.

Under the 1997 Plan and the 2005 Plan (the “Plamgiich expire in 10 years, options granted gehevalst 25% after the first
year of service and ratably each month over a éurd6-month period.

The expected life of the options is based on telical data and is not necessarily indicativehefexercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assuompthat the historical volatility is indicative @fture trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcomes. The risk4fate for periods within the expected life of diptions is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve with maturity equal to the esied life of the options in effect at the timegoédint.

The total compensation expense recognized in tr&ASBe item in the consolidated statement of opierss and
comprehensive income for the fiscal years endeccMat, 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to US$4,51836/378 and
US$258,128, respectively.

Changes in outstanding options under the 1997 Biar2005 Plan and the Omnibus Plan during thalfigears ended
March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2015
Weighted
Weighted average
Range of average remaining Aggregate
Number of exercise exercise contractual intrinsic
options price price term value
Uss$ Uss$
(per share) (per share) (years) Uss$
Outstanding, at beginning of fiscal year 351,251 4.75 - 15.56 12.14 3.91 —
Granted.......ooooiiiiiiiiiieee — — —
EXPIred ...coovvviiiiiiii e — — —
EXErcised......ccooociiiiiiiiiciee — — —
FOMRItET ... ovoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, (20,000) 8.99 8.99
Outstanding, at end of fiscal year........... 331,251 4.75 - 15.56 12.33 2.80 —
Vested and expected to be vested at
March 31, 2015.....ccccceiiiiiieiieeiee e 331,251 4.75 - 15.56 12.33 2.80 —
Exercisable, at end of fiscal year............ 330,001 4.75 - 15.56 12.36 2.78
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28. STOCK COMPENSATION (continued)

Changes in outstanding options under both the P38, the 2005 Plan and the Omnibus Plan durin§igbel years ended
March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: {(nart)

2014
Weighted
Weighted average
Range of average remaining Aggregate
Number of exercise exercise contractual intrinsic
options price price term value
US$ Us$
(per share) (per share) (years) US$
Outstanding, at beginning of fiscal year. 419,751 4.75 - 30.56 14.96 4.28 —
Granted........ccveeeeiiiiiiiesiimeee e — — —
EXPIFEA ..o (65,500) 30.40 — 30.56 30.55
EXercised.........ccccviviiiiiiiiiicccee e (3,000) 4.75 4.75
Forfeited ... — — —
Outstanding, at end of fiscal year........... 351,251 4.75 - 15.56 12.14 3.91 —
Vested and expected to be vested at
March 31, 2014.......oveveeeeeeeeeee e 351,251 4.75 - 15.56 12.14 3.91 —
Exercisable, at end of fiscal year............ 343,751 4.75 - 15.56 12.22 3.85
2013
Weighted
Weighted average
Range of average remaining Aggregate
Number of exercise exercise contractual intrinsic
options price price term value
US$ Us$
(per share) (per share) (years) US$
Outstanding, at beginning of fiscal year. 339,701 8.99 — 30.56 17.66 3.96 —
Granted........cueeeeiiiiiiiesiiceee e 86,000 4.75 4.75
EXPIred ...cccoeeeieiiee e, — — —
EXErcised.......cooociiiiiiiiiiceee — — —
Forfeited ..o, (5,950) 15.60 - 30.56 21.26
Outstanding, at end of fiscal year........... 419,751 4.75 - 30.56 14.96 4.28 —
Vested and expected to be vested at
March 31, 2013.....cccceiieiiieiieeiee e v 419,751 4.75 - 30.56 14.96 4.28 —
Exercisable, at end of fiscal year............ 369,752 4.75 - 30.56 13.41 4.60

In January 1999, the Board of Directors of Globatfi adopted an employee stock purchase plan. Bhengs approved by
the stockholders at the annual meeting of stocldrelth March 1999. The total number of common stgbich may be
granted under the plan is 450,000 shares. Stocitggnaay be awarded under the plan to the employmeading officers,
directors, non-employee directors and consultant®nsideration for their services to the Group.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, Glébedh granted an aggregate of 3,750 shares of consinok of
Global-Tech to an employee with an effective gidate of November 6, 2006. 750 shares of such constoak vested and
were issued on the first anniversary of the dati@ftock grant and 750 shares of such commok sested and were issued
on the second, third, fourth, and fifth anniverssuiof the date of the stock grant, respectively.
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Changes in stock grants during the fiscal yeare@émdarch 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
grant-date grant-date grant-date
Stock fair value Stock fair value Stock fair value
uss uss USs$
Non-vested, at beginning of fiscal year... — — — — 750 10,380
Granted — — — — — —
vested.......cocoveeennnn. — — — — (750 10,380

The total fair value of the 750 shares of commaoglstvested during the fiscal year ended March 8132vas US$6,503.

The expense for employee stock purchase plan rezyin the SG&A line item in the consolidated staent of operations
and comprehensive income for the fiscal years erdarth 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to nil,and US$9,108

respectively.

Further details relating to the options grantedeurtde 1997 Plan, the 2005 Plan and the OmnibustRé& are outstanding as
of March 31, 2015 are as follows:

Options exercisable

Options outstanding as of March 31, 2015 as of March 31, 2015
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Range of average average average
Number exercise price remaining exercise price exercise price
of per contractual per Number per
options option life option of options option
US$ US$ US$
(per share) (years) (per share) (per share)
83,000 4.75 7.31 4.7t 81,750 4.7t
248,251 13.20- 15.60 1.2¢ 14.87 248,251 14.87
331,251 330,001

As of March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, there wasmeangnized share-based compensation cost retatistgck granted to an
employee under the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase P unrecognized compensation cost for stockstgd is expected to
be recognized over a weighted-average vesting ¢hefibvo years and five years. To the extent thatactual forfeiture rate is
different from the original estimate, actual shhesed compensation relating to these awards méiffeeent from the
expectations.

The fair value of the options granted was estimatethe date of grant using the following assumpio

2015 2014 2013
Risk-free Interest Rate .............uueiiiiiieeeeeiiiiieeeeee e — — 0.97% -1.50%
Expected Dividend Yield...........cooeeiiiiiieeee e — — 0%
Expected Option Life ... e — — 7 — 10 years
Expected Stock Price Volatility ............ooceeiiiiiiimiiieeee, — — 53.28% - 58.71%
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29. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF GLOBAL-TECH

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, thag2my’s PRC subsidiaries (the “PRC Subsidiariesg)rastricted in their
ability to transfer certain of their net asset&tobal-Tech in the form of dividend payments, lgasrsadvances. The amounts
restricted include net assets of the PRC Subsidiaais determined pursuant to PRC generally actept®unting principles,
totaling RMB281,595,535 (approximately US$45,378)1&s of March 31, 2015.

The following is the condensed financial informatiaf Global-Tech on a stand-alone basis:

Balance sheets

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014
USs$ US$
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equUIValENES ..........coeiiiiieeceeee e, 3,643,139 6,719,079

LI =T =Y o To L] PSR 7,008,639 11,339,515

=TS ([ (=Y [ o T o PSR 5,000,000 —

Available-for-sale iINVEStMENLS ...........iieeei e — 1,050,500

Prepaid EXPENSES........coociiieieiee s et e e e e e 15,142 17,803

Deposits and Other @SSEtS ........ccoiiiiiieccee e 47,388 302,107
TOtaAl CUITENE ASSELS ... oottt et e e e e e e e e e st e e e e e o 15,714,308 19,429,004
INtErests iN SUDSIAIANIES .........uvuriiiii it ereeeae e 43,727,227 46,474,157
B0 = U TS £ 59,441,535 65,903,161
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Other accrued labilitieS .............uvvuvvmmmemercne e e 129,164 113,158
Total ADITIES....c.vee e e e 129,164 113,158
Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, par value US$0.04 per share; 12,60Gbares authorized;

3,233,814 shares issued as of March 31, 2015 ahdl. 20..................... 129,353 129,353

Preferred stock, par value US$0.04 per share; BBGsBares authorized; no

SNAIES ISSUEBH......vviiiiiiiiiies et eeaaa e — —

Additional paid-in capital 85,108,427 85,103,910

Statutory reServes.........uvvvveeneenienm 1,328,283 1,340,229

Accumulated defiCit..........evieiiiiii e (32,999,298) (26,590,366)

Accumulated other comprehensive income. 10,848,613 10,854,689

Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 189,587 shares Msmm 31 2015 and 2014 (4,663,321) (4,663,321)

Total Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. shatééis’ equity............. 59,752,057 66,174,494

NON-CONtrolling INEEIESES ........coivviiiiiiereere e (439,686) (384,491)
TOtAl EQUILY ..coeieiiee et r e e e e e e e e e e aaae e e e e e aaaaaee 59,312,371 65,790,003
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 59,441,535 65,903,161
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29. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF GLOBAL-TECHcontinued)
Statements of operations and comprehensive income

Fiscal years ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
uss$ uss$ us$

NEE SAIE ..t — — —
Cost Of OOAS SO ......covviiiiiiiiii e, — — —
GrOSS PrOfit..eueeeeeeieiiees et a e aa e — — —
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses.......cccccveveeerevimmnnnnn. (758,350) (887,346) (1,071,502)
(@] 01=T = 11T I [0 1SS (758,350) (887,346) (1,071,502)
INtErest INCOME, NET......ciiiiiiieii e 401,895 359,062 344,582
Equity in losses oOf SUDSIAIANES ...........ceeeeeceeeeeeimiiiiiiiieieee e, (6,149,258) (7,308,381) (484,185)
Other iNComMe (EXPENSE), NEL.......uuviiriiieeeeceeeieree e e e e e e e e eerrrereeeeee s 84,835 (2,718,892) (752,196)
Net los: attributable to shareholders of Global-Tech Adeahc

INNOVALIONS INC. oo (6,420,878) (10,555,557) (1,963,301)
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation adjustments........c.ccccceeeeiiviecvevvvnnnnnen 44,424 153,629 989,800
Release of unrealized loss on available-for-salestments, net of

income tax of nil, upon disposal............ceeeeeiiiiiiimeeiiiiiiiieieiiis (50,500) (13,980) —
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investmenés,of income tax

OF Nl e — 5,300 22,495
Total comprehensive loss attributable to sharelsldeGlobal-Tech

Advanced INNovations INC. ........eevvviieiieeeeeer e, (6,426,954) (10,410,608) (951,006)
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF GLOBAL-TECHcontinued)

Statements of cash flows

Fiscal years ended March 31,

2015 2014 2013
us$ us$ us$
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net los: attributable to shareholders of Global-Tech Adeahc
INNOVALIONS INC. wvvviviiiiiieice ettt (6,420,878) (10,555,557) (1,963,301)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss attributablehtarsholders of
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. to net castvided by
operating activities:
Stock compensation EXPENSE .....c.cceeeeeieveeeceeerieiireeeeeeenns 4,517 36,378 258,128
Shares issued to an employee .............occeeeeemeeeeneeeenenennn, — — 9,108
Equity in losses of subsidiaries...........ccccccevvvvvimevvervnnnnnnns 6,149,258 7,308,381 484,185
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid EXPENSES......cc.uuvuuriviriiis vmmmmmmme e aeeeeeeaeeesessssnnannn 2,661 29,100 (3,693)
Deposits and other assets ..........cc.ccvueeeremmeicieie e 254,719 (262,020) (15,364)
Other accrued liabilitieS ..........coeeeei i vemmem e e e, 16,006 21,044 (109,369)
Net castprovided by (used in) operating activities..................... 6,283 (3,422,674) (1,340,306)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investts................ 1,000,000 — 2,000,000
Repayment of amounts due from (advances to) saidj net..... (3,413,099) 2,061,153 910,372
Increase in time dePoSItS .......ccoccivvviceem e 4,330,876 (11,339,515) —
Capital injection iNto SUDSIAIANES ..........ommmeeereenimmiiniiieeeeaaeaans — — (1,107,753)
Net cash provided k(used in) investing activities....................... 1,917,777 (9,278,362) 1,802,619
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from stock options exercised.....ccceeeeeeeeiiiicieeiniiinnnnes — 14,250 —
Cash dividend paid .........c.ccceeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e e — — (3,040,753)
Deposits of restricted Cash...............oceeemeevvvviiiiiiiinie e, (5,000,000) — —
Net castprovided by (used in) financing activities...................... (5,000,000) 14,250 (3,040,753)
Net decrease in cash and cash equIVe .........cccvveeveveeeeeeeiicceenn, (3,075,940) (12,686,786) (2,578,440)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fisal.ye................. 6,719,079 19,405,865 21,984,305
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year.............c.c....... 3,643,139 6,719,079 19,405,865

(@) Basis of preparation

For the purposes of the preparation of the condEfisancial information of Global-Tech, the Compaegords its
interests in direct and indirect subsidiaries uriderequity method of accounting as prescribedd8B ASC 323

“Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures”. ISutterests, together with the advances to subigdisare presented
as “Interests in subsidiaries” on the balance shad share of the subsidiaries’ income and ldassa®sented as “Equity
in profits (losses) of subsidiaries” on the statets®f operations and comprehensive income.

(b) Commitments

Global-Tech has provided a letter of support taaderof its subsidiaries indicating its commitmémprovide continuing
financial support to those subsidiaries.
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AVAILABILITY OF ADDITIONAL |INFORMATION

This publication is a summary annual report. A copy
Global-Tech's annual report on Form 20-F and
quarterly reports will be furnished without chargson
request to any shareholder. The annual report on
Form 20-F is also available on Global-Tech’s websit
at http://www.global-webpage.com Please send
requests to:

Investor Relations Department
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.
12/F., Kin Teck Industrial Building

26 Wong Chuk Hang Road

Aberdeen, Hong Kong

For further information on Global-Tech, its product
and its markets, please call (852) 2814-0601 or fax
(852) 2873-0591.



